
  
Council Meeting Agenda 

December 5, 2022  
6:00PM 

 

1. Call to Order ................................................................................................ Mayor Ed Hooks 

2. Moment of Silence ...................................................................................................... Mayor 

3. Public Comments ........................................................................................................ Mayor 

4. Recognition of Emily Mathews- 
2022 NCHSAA 3A Individual State Golf Champion ...................................................... Mayor  

5. Consent Agenda .......................................................................................................... Mayor 

a. Approval of Minutes- November 7, 2022 Regular Meeting  
b. Petition for Voluntary Contiguous Annexation- McKay Land NC, LLC- McKay Books 
c. Petition for Voluntary Contiguous Annexation- G & L Construction and Larry & Susan 

Wood- Peartree Townhomes 
d. Water Resource Recovery Facility (WRRF) Expansion Capital Project Ordinance 

Amendment 5 
e. 2023 Regular Meetings and FY 2023-2024 Budget Calendar 

 
6. Public Hearings-  

a. Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits-  
Voluntary Contiguous Annexation- Sarah Bradley, J. Thomas Wilson,  
Tammy C. Wilson, Steven S. Scott and Linda P. Scott ........ Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

 
b. Conditional Rezoning- Crow Industrial +/- 77.689 acres-  

1447 Trollingwood-Hawfields Road from LM (Light Manufacturing)  
and B-2 (General Business) to LM CD (Light Manufacturing Conditional District) 
 to allow light-industrial development including three warehouse buildings by CHI 
Acquisitions, L.P. ................................................ Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 

c. Rezoning- TRG Capital, LLC- +/- 0.74-acre parcel- 304 E. Washington Street  
from HM (Heavy Manufacturing) to O&I (Office and Institutional) ............. Ms. Ownbey 
 

d. Rezoning- TRG Capital, LLC- +/- 15,681 square foot unaddressed parcel  
with frontage on Oakwood Street from HM (Heavy Manufacturing) and R-12 
(Residential) to R-12 (Residential)  .............................................................. Ms. Ownbey 

 
e. Rezoning- TRG Capital, LLC- +/- 12,632 s.f. unaddressed parcel with frontage on 

Oakwood Street (GPIN 9825232048) from HM (Heavy Manufacturing) and R-12 
(Residential) to R-12 (Residential) by TRG Capital, LLC ............................... Ms. Ownbey 

 

7. Adjournment ............................................................................................................... Mayor 



 

City Council Meeting 
Mebane Municipal Building 

Monday, November 7, 2022 

The Mebane City Council met for its regular monthly meeting at 6:00 p.m., Monday, 
November 7, 2022 in the Council Chambers of the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building located 
at 106 E. Washington Street.  

Councilmembers Present: Also Present:  
Mayor Ed Hooks  Chris Rollins, City Manager 
Mayor Pro-Tem Tim Bradley Preston Mitchell, Assistant City Manager      
Councilmember Katie Burkholder Lawson Brown, City Attorney 
Councilmember Sean Ewing Stephanie Shaw, City Clerk 
Councilmember Montrena Hadley Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 
Councilmember Jonathan White Daphna Schwartz, Finance Director 
                                                                                      Aaron Davis, Recreation and Parks Director 
 Franz Holt, City Engineer 

                                                                                                                                                                
Mayor Hooks called the meeting to order.  Pastor Ken Tilley of Crosslink Community Church gave 
the invocation. 

Mr. Mitchell recognized Kelly Hunter, the City’s first Public Information Officer (PIO). Miss Hunter 
introduced herself and shared her excitement for her new role as PIO.   

Dan Shannon, President of the Downtown Mebane’s Development Corporation (DMDC), came 
forward to recognize Barbara Hollerand, DMDC’s Executive Director. He shared a little information 
regarding Ms. Hollerand’s professional experience and commended her on the work she has 
completed so far.  Ms. Hollerand shared her enthusiasm for Mebane and the community as a 
whole.  

Mayor Hooks read aloud a proclamation promoting Small Business Saturday to be held on 
November 26, 2022. 

Mr. Shannon took a moment to thank Mayor Hooks for his personal donation of $5,000 to the 
DMDC.  He stated that they have had another major contributor of a $5,000 donation as well. He 
thanked the community and its leaders, stating that the DMDC has had a tremendous start.  

During the Public Comment Period, Colin Cannell, 717 S. Fifth Street, Mebane, shared his concerns 
with the Council’s acceptance of payments-in-lieu from developers as defined in Mebane’s Unified 
Development Ordinance. He feels those payments-in-lieu are extremely undervalued and 
requested that Council take offers of payments-in-lieu under careful consideration. 

Also, during the Public Comment Period, Mike Davis, Stonewall Construction Services, LLC, 
Burlington, stated that they have done multiple projects in Mebane and he wanted to thank the 
City’s Inspections and Planning staff and the Fire Inspector for all of their help and hard work.  

Concluding the Public Comment Period, Jay Starnes, 701 Fairway Drive, Mebane, HOA President 
of the Arrowhead Greens subdivision, shared concerns with traffic issues in their neighborhood. 
He stated that they would like to begin the process of having traffic calming devices installed in 
their subdivision similar to those installed on London Lane. Mayor Hooks directed Mr. Starnes to 
speak with the City Manager or Assistant City Manager. 

Mayor Hooks gave an overview of the Consent Agenda: 

a. Approval of Minutes- October 3, 2022 Regular Meeting  
b. Final Plat Approval- Bowman Place, Ph. S-2 
c. Final Plat Approval- Summerhaven, Ph. 2 
d. Final Plat Approval- Buckhorn Business Centre, Ph. 1 
e. Final Plat Reapproval- St. Barts Place 
f. Petition for Voluntary Contiguous Annexation- Sarah S. Bradley, J. Thomas Wilson, 

Tammy C. Wilson, Steven S. Scott and Linda P. Scott 
g. American Rescue Plan Resolution 



 

h. Quarterly Financial Report- July 1, 2022- September 30, 2022 
 

Mayor Hooks announced that item d. is pulled from the Consent Agenda. He requested action on 
the remaining items a-h.  Mr. Bradley made a motion, seconded by Mr. Ewing, to approve the 
Consent Agenda with the exception of item d.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
Item f.  

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-31 

 
Annexation No. 157 

 
     WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has been received; 
and 
 
     WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition has been made; 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mebane, North Carolina 
that: 
 
     Section 1. A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area described herein will be 
held at the Mebane Municipal Building at 6:00 p.m. on December 5, 2022. 
 
     Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as follows:  
 
 Being all of the Sarah Bradley, et al Tracts as recorded in Deed Book 3859, Page 935, and depicted 
in Plat Book 71, Page 495 & Plat Book 76, Page 191, of the Alamance County Registry, the full width of 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway for the length of frontage of the described tracts, and a portion of 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road. 
Melville Township, Alamance County, North Carolina. 
 
Being all that certain land more particularly described as follows: 
 
COMMENCING at NGS Monument “Hawfields”, having NCSPCS Coordinates of Northing: 840,044.17’ 
Easting: 1,909,650.87’, thence North 13°05’23” West a distance of 1,447.31 feet to an existing iron pipe on 
the northern corner of Hawfields Presbyterian Church [1] (GPIN# 9804901755 / Deed Book 998, Page 745 
(also see Deed Book 2597, Page 330, and Plat Book 71, Page 495), the point of BEGINNING; thence along 
the line of Hawfields Presbyterian Church [1] the following three (3) calls: South 55°38'37" West a distance 
of 640.15 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence South 44°05'04" West a distance of 256.98 feet to an existing 
iron pipe; thence South 40°47'00" West a distance of 499.10 feet to an existing iron pipe on the northern 
line of Hawfields Presbyterian Church [2] (GPIN# 9804802087 / Deed Book 998, Page 745); thence with the 
line of Hawfields Presbyterian Church North 77°51'02" West a distance of 653.47 feet to an existing iron 
pipe on the eastern line of Exeter 2125 Senator Ralph Scott LP (GPIN# 9803794914 / Deed Book 3706, Page 
292 (also see Plat Book 78, Page 56); thence with the line of Exeter 2125 Senator Ralph Scott LP North 
30°42'00" West a distance of 16.70 feet to a set iron pipe on the southern Right of Way of Senator Ralph 
Scott Parkway (a public 60’ R/W); thence continuing North 30°42'00" West a distance of 60.02 feet to a set 
iron pipe on the northern R/W of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway, and the southeastern corner of BT-OH LLC 
(GPIN# 9804314534 / Deed Book 4096, Page 653 (also see Plat Book 82, Page 91); thence continuing along 
the line of BT-OH LLC the following two (2) calls: North 30°42'00" West a distance of 1,345.68 feet to an 
existing iron pipe; thence North 30°42'00" West a distance of 1,077.13 feet to a set iron pipe on the 
southern R/W of Interstate 40-85 (a variable width public R/W; thence along the southern R/W of Interstate 
40-85, and Trollingwood-Hawfields Road (a variable width public R/W) the following ten (10) calls: with a 
curve turning to the left with an arc length of 384.59', with a radius of 3,949.72', with a chord bearing of 
North 78°33'35" East, with a chord length of 384.44' to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence North 86°16'15" East a 
distance of 98.09 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence North 79°00'44" East a distance of 195.74 feet to a 
NCDOT R/W disc; thence with a curve turning to the right with an arc length of 204.08', with a radius of 
1,829.86', with a chord bearing of North 84°13'55" East, with a chord length of 203.98' to a NCDOT R/W 
disc; thence North 89°27'20" East a distance of 195.78 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence North 88°51'22" 
East a distance of 206.74 feet to a point; thence with a curve turning to the left with an arc length of 125.25', 
with a radius of 1,225.92', with a chord bearing of North 82°19'31" East, with a chord length of 125.20' to 
a NCDOT R/W disc; thence North 76°15'53" East a distance of 177.16 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence 



 

South 64°11'31" East a distance of 131.35 feet to a set iron pipe, and passing an existing iron pipe at 63.14 
feet; thence South 39°46'26" East a distance of 107.18 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence crossing the R/W 
of Trollingwood-Hawfields Road North 49°23’29” East a distance of 130.59 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc on 
the eastern R/W of Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and the line of PFJ Southeast LLC (GPIN# 9804836168 / 
Deed Book 3603, Page 741); thence continuing with the line of PFJ Southeast LLC the following two (2) calls: 
South 41°02’06” East a distance of 62.79 feet to a point; thence South 37°42’26” East a distance of 251.62 
feet to an existing iron pipe on the corner of Trollingwood-Hawfields LLC (GPIN# 9804922987 / Deed Book 
2835, Page 293 (also see Plat Book 73, Page 102); thence with the line of Trollingwood-Hawfields LLC the 
following three (3) calls: with a curve turning to the left with an arc length of 45.27', with a radius of 
1,819.86', with a chord bearing of South 33°37'37" East, with a chord length of 45.27 feet to a point; thence 
South 07°50’12” East a distance of 70.70 feet to a point; thence South 32°33’41” East a distance of 126.24 
feet to an existing iron pipe on the corner of John A. Williams (GPIN# 9804922954 / Deed Book 3915, Page 
293 (also see Plat Book 73, Page 102); thence with the line of John A. Williams, and Trollingwood-Hawfields 
LLC the following two (2) calls: South 36°41’39” East a distance of 254.39 feet to a point; thence South 
41°08’05” East a distance of 170.92 feet to a point; thence crossing the R/W of Trollingwood-Hawfields 
Road South 48°51’55” West a distance of 60.00 feet to the western R/W of Trollingwood-Hawfields Road; 
thence with the western R/W of Trollingwood-Hawfields Road the following seven (7) calls: South 41°08’05” 
East a distance of 218.97 feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 34°46’08” East a distance of 14.34 feet to a 
set iron pipe; thence South 34°46’08” East a distance of 88.97 feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 
41°03’45” East a distance of 99.24 feet to a set iron pipe; thence 42°18’44” East a distance of 316.75 feet 
to a set iron pipe; thence South 46°49’31” East a distance of 29.36 feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 
41°01’06” East a distance of 126.79 feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 55°38'37" West a distance of 11.14 
feet to the point of BEGINNING, containing an area of 4,124,746 square feet, or 94.691 acres, more or less. 
 
      Section 3. Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Mebane Enterprise, a 
newspaper having general circulation in the City of Mebane, at least ten (10) days prior to the date 
of the public hearing. 
    
  Ed Hooks, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
  
Stephanie W. Shaw, City Clerk 
 
 
Item g. 

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF RECIPIENT 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mebane has qualified for the Viability Utility Reserve (VUR) designation 

associated with the American Rescue Plan (ARP) funded from the State Fiscal 
Recovery Fund established in S.L. 2021-180 to assist eligible units of government 
with meeting their water/wastewater infrastructure needs, and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality has offered American 

Rescue Plan (ARP) funding in the amount of $11,925,000.00 to perform work 
detailed in the submitted application, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mebane intends to perform said project in accordance with the agreed 

scope of work, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEBANE: 
 

That (unit of government) does hereby accept the American Rescue Plan Grant offer of 
$11,925,000.00. 

 
That the City of Mebane does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina Department of 
Environmental Quality that any Conditions or Assurances contained in the Award Offer will 
be adhered to. 

 



 

That Chris Rollins, City Manager and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed 
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection 
with this project; to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other 
documents as may be required by the Division of Water Infrastructure. 

 
Adopted this the 7th day of November, 2022 at Mebane, North Carolina. 
                                                             

      ________________________ 
      Ed Hooks, Mayor 

 
 
Mr. Holt gave an overview of item d. Final Plat Approval- Buckhorn Business Centre, Ph. 1.  He 
stated that Buckhorn Industrial, LLC has submitted a plat for three lots and they would like to do 
an early recording of the plat, lots two and three would be home to a 220,000 square foot 
industrial building and a 330,000 square foot industrial building. He explained that in order to get 
building permits, the plat has to be recorded. The improvements are not completed at this time. 
The construction drawings have been approved by Mebane’s TRC. The City does have permits in 
along with a driveway permit with NCDOT.  They would like to bond all improvements this time 
because they don't think that they will be through until late Spring, early Summer. He said in 
consideration of this request, the developer set up a meeting with the fire department to discuss 
installing the required emergency access. They have guaranteed emergency access to both 
buildings.  The developer plans on installing the public roadway and water line and storm drain at 
the same time they are building their internal infrastructure. The developer is not selling the lots, 
he is recording them and building buildings on them.  The public water and sewer are already on 
site they were installed when Petro first came to the City of Mebane, so there's no off-site water 
and sewer improvements or easements related to that which would need to be obtained and there 
are no roadway improvements required on Buckhorn other than the connection for their design 
drawings that they have provided. The UDO allows Council to waive certain items to be installed 
with bonding, a list which was provided to Council.  Staff has no issues with the request based on 
the reasoning as explained.  
 
Mr. Bradley said as long as Chief Louis is okay with the emergency accesses and if they are fully 
bonded, he has no problem with approving. He then made a motion, seconded by Ms. Hadley, to 
waive the requirements in lieu of bond per the UDO. The motion carried unanimously.  
 
A Public Hearing was held on a request from Lebanon Road 3, LLC, c/o James Parker, Jr., for 
approval to conditionally rezone two properties totaling +/- 87.73 acres located at 1818 Saddle 
Club Road from R-10 and R-20 to R-12 (CD) to allow for “Tupelo North,” a residential cluster 
development of 207 single-family homes. The property is located in Orange County, outside of the 
City Limits within the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ).  Ms. Ownbey gave an overview of the 
request.  The surrounding properties are zoned R-12 CD, R-20, and Orange County AR. The larger 
of the subject property was rezoned to R-10 with a Special Use permit in 2005. The vested rights 
have since expired. The property is also located in the water supply watershed overlay district. 
Annexation into City Limits will be required to connect to City Utilities.  The subject property is 
largely vacant and forested. The smaller of the two properties is occupied by a single-family home 
and bee farm. Surrounding uses include single family residential subdivisions with 7,200 square 
foot minimum lot size and larger lot single family residential. The property is located within the 
Mebane by Design Secondary growth area. The internal road network would include 5’ sidewalks 
on one side of all streets. Additionally, there is a public multi-use path network proposed running 
through the middle of the site and there are traffic calming devices that intersect with that multi-
use path. There would be just over 37 acres of private open space dedicated.  The subdivision is 
intended to be an extension of the Tupelo Junction subdivision under construction immediately to 
the south of the site. The development will be accessed through Tupelo Junction’s Street 
connections at Lebanon Road and Saddle Club Road. The amenities will be inclusive for all 
residents of Tupelo Junction and the proposed Tupelo North.  There are no new driveway access 
points proposed, as the driveway entrances for Tupelo Junction would be used. Additionally, the 
subdivision required a traffic impact analysis which was reviewed by NCDOT and City staff. The 
results of that analysis require the developer to provide a right turn lane on Lebanon Road at the 



 

intersection with Stagecoach Road. However, given concerns with that intersection the developer 
has committed to completing a signal warrant analysis to see if a traffic signal would better serve 
that intersection and if it would be warranted.  As a conditional rezoning, this request is site 
specific.  Additionally, there are certain conditions the developer is requesting including some 
deviations from dimensional requirements typically required of the R-12 zoning District, so there 
would be a slight reduction in lot width along with some reduction in corner, side and rear 
setbacks.  Finally, the UDO requires that just under six acres of public recreation area be required. 
The developer is proposing nearly a half-acre through a public multi-use path, with the additional  

Tim McAvinney, Civil Designer with EarthCentric Engineering, Inc., presented the request on behalf 
of James Parker and the Lebanon Road 3, LLC who are the Developers for Tupelo Junction North. 
Mr. McAvinney shared a vicinity and project site map.  He reiterated the same basic request details 
as shared by Ms. Ownbey.  He shared the following: 
 
Site Area Breakdown- 

• ± 87.73 acres total area 
• ± 83.69 acres R10, ± 4.05 acres R20 (per GIS) 
• 50.08 acres developed (57%) 
• 37.65 acres private open space (43%) 
• 0.49 acres public recreation space 
• Cape Fear/Graham-Mebane Lake Non-Critical Watershed – 30% Impervious Built-Upon 

Area Limit 

Lot Yield- 

• Allowed by UDO, R12: 318 lots @ 3.63 lots/ac 
• Proposed: 207 lots @ 2.36 lots/ac 
• 129 lots – phase 1, 78 lots phase 2 

Project Components- 

• Access 
o Access to the site from Lebanon and Saddle Club Roads via Tupelo Junction  
o Connection to future Mill Creek subdivision expansion (NW corner) with crossing 

of Mill Creek (developer shared cost agreement) 
o Two potential future connections provided to eastern property line, terminating in 

convertible cul-de-sacs 
o Lebanon Road/Stagecoach Road intersection improvements per TIA 

He shared that the TIA did identify a decreased level of service at the Stagecoach Road and 
Lebanon Road intersection. As previously stated, the developer will continue to work with the City 
and NCDOT to complete a signal warrant analysis to see if a traffic signal would better serve that 
intersection and if it would be warranted. 

Mr. Mitchell explained if the signal warrant analysis and NCDOT says the signal light cannot occur, 
the turn lane would happen after the 75th building permit is issued for Tupelo North.  If the signal 
light is warranted it would happen after the 101st building permit is issued for Tupelo North. Mr. 
Mitchell stated that the City appreciates the developer’s willingness to take this and either-or 
approach tonight as a voluntary condition which he is offering for approval which would not 
require him to have to come back. He said NCDOT also stressed that the signal or turn lane would 
be constructed by the developer not NCDOT. 

After discussion among the Council and staff, Mr. McAvinney proceeded with sharing the 
following: 

Public Water- 

• Water supplied by connections to 8” and 12” water mains in Tupelo Junction. 
• 12” water main to be extended north through the site into the future Mill Creek 

development 

Public Sewer- 



 

• Connection to existing 8” in Tupelo Junction (south) 
• New 12” outfall onto Mill Creek property 

Road Cross-Section- 

• Standard Mebane 31’ B-B with 5’ sidewalk on one side. Traffic calming measures included. 

Multi-Use Path/Greenway Trail- 

• 10’ wide paved trail as part of Mebane Bike & Pedestrian Plan 
• Connects to trail through Tupelo Junction (south) and extends to Mill Creek property (west 

and north). Includes creek crossing in NW corner 
• Additional trail along Duke Energy power line easement with connection to neighborhood 

amenity building/pool & mail kiosks 
• Access easements for future trail extensions 

Storm Drainage System- 

• Curb, Gutter and Engineered Storm Drainage System 
• Swales between lots, roof drains directed to SD system and SCMs as needed 
• 30% Impervious Area Limit 
• Preliminary calculations indicate 22,500 sf of SCMs divided into four basins. Final 

determination of size and type of SCMs to be made at construction plan stage. 
• SCMs landscaped per UDO 

Mr. Bradley requested that staff go over the difference between the 37 acres of open space as 
opposed to the 5.4 acres of dedicated recreational space. This is in relationship to the concerns of 
a previous speaker tonight. He said, his understanding has always been that payment in lieu of for 
public recreation space was because it was useless to have a bunch of little subdivisions around 
everywhere that had four or five acres when it didn't really amount to anything public recreation, 
so the Council allowed a payment in lieu of and that money was taken to place toward parks but 
the previous speaker seemed to indicate that that really netted down the open space but in fact 
in this case the 37 acres of open space as opposed to the 5.4 acres. Ms. Ownbey said that Mr. 
Bradley is correct. In making calculations, the open space is a different calculation than the public 
recreation space. This is a cluster development and open space is determined based on the density 
and how they have designed their subdivision. It has to make up for the difference between a 
12,000 square foot lot and the 7,200 square foot lot. They are proposing the public recreation 
calculation is completely different and is based on the number of lots in the size of the property. 

Mr. Mitchell added, while not speaking for the Recreation and Parks Director but based on past 
discussions, centralized parks are more efficient service, in his opinion, as well as opposed to minor 
parks that may not have restrooms and many amenities. Most local governments operate larger 
parks in an industry standard distance to one another. He said he thinks Mr. Bradley is asking both 
questions about open space and about taking a payment in lieu of to have a more centralized 
higher level of service parks as opposed to having many small parks that don't provide many 
amenities.  

After further discussion related to public and open recreation space, Mr. Bradley said the earlier 
speaker made a good point, the City does need to ensure that the calculations for payment in lieu 
need to keep up with inflation and cost of properties. Mr. Rollins said the calculations are based 
on the ad valorem value from the County as that is the simplest and fairest way to calculate the 
payments in lieu.   

Tom Boney, Owner/Editor of Alamance News, offered comments in regard to Alamance County’s 
revaluation process. 

Mr. McAvinney continued his presentation. Sharing the following project components: 

Open Space / Natural Buffers- 

• Located around the perimeter and within the site 
• Supplemented with plantings in the southeast corner due to lack of existing vegetation and 

proximity of neighboring residence 



 

Neighborhood Amenity- 

• Pool & pool house building with bath/changing rooms, covered patio area, parking, mail 
kiosk 

• 10’ paved connection to multi-use path / greenway trail system. 
• Full reciprocity shared amenity use agreement with Tupelo Junction (south) 
• Amenity to be constructed at the start of Tupelo Junction North Phase 2 

Minimum Lot Dimensions- 

• 25’ Front Setback 
• 20’ Rear Setback 
• 7.5’ Side Setback 
• 13’ Corner Setback 
• 10’ Utility Easement 
• 7,200 sf Minimum 

Architectural Commitments- 

• Fiber Cement Siding, Composite Trim 
• Exterior Styles - front elevations will include at least two of the following elements:  
• Horizontal Siding 
• Shake Siding 
• Board & Batten Siding 
• Brick or Cultured Stone 
• Decorative front door with a minimum 25% glazing and/or window transom. 
• Covered Entry or Front Porch 
• Roofing 
• Minimum 6:12 pitch 
• 20 Year Asphalt Shingles 
• Minimum 6” Overhang 
• Monoslab Construction 
• 5 Inch Gutters with Downspouts 
• All homes will have 2-car garages 
• Garage doors with feature decorative hardware 
• Front Yards shall be sodded 

Ranch Plans:  

• 1,400 – 2,000 square feet 
• 2-3 Bedrooms, 2-3 Baths 
• 1-2 Plans 

2-Story Plans:  

• 1,800 – 3,200 square feet 
• 3-5 Bedrooms, 2.5-5 Baths 
• 4- 6 Plans 

He shared renderings of the proposed architectural elevations. He then concluded his 
presentation with the following summary of the request: 

Tupelo Junction North is designed as an R12 Residential Cluster Subdivision with lot areas reduced 
up to 40% (7,200 square feet, minimum) per the UDO to allow the preservation of private open 
space as part of the neighborhood. 

UDO Waivers Requested- 

• Minimum lot frontage reduction from 65’ to 60’ 
• Side lot setback reduced from 10’ to 7.5’ 
• Corner lot side setback reduced from 18’ to 13’ 
• Rear lot setback reduced from 25’ to 20’ 
• Reduce required public recreation space dedication from 5.94 acres to 0.49 acres plus a 



 

payment-in-lieu of $16,126.28 (for 5.45 acres) 

Mr. Mitchell explained that the UDO does require one tree minimum per lot per the adopted UDO 
amendments in June, however the plans for this development were submitted in May, therefore 
the applicant is not required to adhere to that requirement. So, if the applicant is willing to make 
that commitment, they would have to offer it as a voluntary condition.  Mr. McAvinney said the 
applicant is willing to offer it as a voluntary condition.  

Phil Koch, Engineer with EarthCentric, offered clarification regarding the public utility lines to and 
from the site.   

Carl Bradley, 4610Mebane Rogers Road, questioned if developers are held to their amenity 
commitments.  Mr. Rollins said they are held to the commitments shown on the site plans and 
approved by Council.  
 
Steve Wright, 128 Peppertree Drive, Mebane, said in terms of property line plantings, he would 
like to recommend that the City consider asking the developers to plant more than one species of 
trees, fast growing and slow growing.  He then questioned if there is already a left turn lane at the 
location where the right turn lane is proposed.  
 
Mr. McAvinney replied, there are no extra turn lanes at Stagecoach Road, it is a fairly wide area. 
 
Mr. Cannell said he appreciates the staff’s wisdom in pushing back against his suggestions and he 
appreciates that the City is choosing to go in a direction of more centralized parks and that is 
certainly the City’s option to do but when the UDO was put together with that design of the small 
parks, that was selected as a contribution that the developers had to make to the public 
recreational life of the City.  If the City is now choosing to opt for by default the payment in lieu 
and centralize its parks, that is effectively a grant that the City is making to every developer; saying 
that you used to have to contribute to this recreational life of the City but you no longer do we're 
going to take these very small payments instead and we (the City) are going to handle the cost of 
developing, building and buying these parks all by ourselves. He said he thinks if the City is going 
to make that strategic shift in its direction, the City should decide what is it getting to in place of 
that, so that people who are building these subdivisions can contribute something else. He went 
on to say that for this particular plan, the reason that the payment in lieu is $16,000, is the 
definition of the letter of the law but not the spirit.  The UDO calls for a payment that is the 
equivalent of the assessed tax value. It is true that Orange County did just reassess all their taxes 
and the land here on this Lee's Bees Farm, 84 acres, is assessed currently at $21,000, the reason 
it is assessed that way is because there is a gigantic deferred tax value on it. He said you can look 
it up in Orange County's taxes of over five hundred thousand dollars in tax value which will have 
to be paid when the property is sold.  So, although technically it's only assessed at $20,000, there 
is $500,000 in tax value that Orange County knows is there and is on the tax assessment.  It is just 
not on the line that says assessed value and this applicant is using that technicality to deprive the 
City of the very little money that the City has decided it is going to get in exchange for this and he 
does not think it is right and the City should allow itself to be taken in that way. 
 
Mayor Hooks said the property was most likely assessed as a farm and charged farm tax. 
 
Mr. Shannon, 4618 Mebane Rogers Road, Mebane, stated that he lives approximately 1 mile from 
Tupelo Junction and he has a daughter that live approximately 2 miles from there. He questioned 
how the Mebane Fire and Orange County’s Fire Department would respond to a house fire in that 
neighborhood.  Chief Louis stated that currently the property is in Orange County and outside of 
Mebane City limits in Efland’s Fire District. He said it will be annexed inside the City limits so it will 
be in Mebane’s primary response area and Efland Fire will respond mutual aid on working 
structure fires. 
 
There was more discussion regarding assessed tax value and deferred tax value and the general 
statutes which govern how cities assess values.  
 
Mr. McAvinney said that he would like to offer some clarification regarding the possible site access 
to Mill Creek, stating that if the Mill Creek expansion project goes away, there would be no 



 

developer to have an agreement with, therefore they would have to stop short of the creek and 
leave something that is still constructible on Tupelo Junction’s side. The stub at the very least is 
guaranteed. 
 
Mr. Boney asked who the builders are and will be.  Mr. McAvinney replied, Garman Homes for the 
south and Davidson Homes for the north. 
 
Mr. Bradley made a motion, seconded by Mr. Ewing, to close the public hearing. The motion 
carried unanimously. Ms. Burkholder made a motion, seconded by Mr. Bradley, to approve the R-
12(CD) zoning as presented and a motion to find that the application is consistent with the 
objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. 
The request: 
 

• Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area, which is “…generally 
residential and commercial in nature…” (Mebane CLP, p.66);  

• Is providing community facilities in the form of a greenway consistent with Growth 
Management Goal 1.4 (p. 17, 83)  

• Provides a greenway and open space in a developing area, connecting to other locations, 
consistent with Open Space and Natural Resource Protection Goal 4.3 (p. 17, 89, & 90);  

 
Ms. Burkholder said that her motion includes the verbal voluntary conditions offered. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Hooks called for a break at 7:32 p.m. He called the meeting back to order at 7:45 p.m. 
 
Brain Thomas, NCDOT Regional Traffic Engineer, presented a request for approval of Certifications 
of Municipal Declarations to Repeal Speed Limits and request for Concurrence on the NC 119 
Project. Mr. Thomas explained that the construction of the new NC 119 project has resulted in the 
need for speed limit ordinance changes, both inside and out of the City of Mebane.  Municipal 
certifications are required for speed zone changes (enacts and repeals) on any streets within a 
municipality which are also part of the State highway system (except interstates and other 
controlled access highways).  In most cases, the ordinance changes are administrative in nature to 
correct the road the ordinance is written on or to correct ordinance terminal references with no 
change in the posted speed limit. That said, in all cases, the speed limits of the ordinances 
recommended for approval are written to match the currently posted speed limits. He noted that 
the ordinances presented for approval tonight are only a portion of the entire package of 
ordinances affected by the NC 119 relocation. NCDOT is proposing speed limit changes on the new 
portion of NC 119, but those changes are part of the complete package of affected ordinances and 
cannot move forward until the municipal ordinances have been addressed.  He shared a map and 
summary of the requested changes, list below. 
 

1. To reflect rerouting of NC 119 from Fifth Street to newly constructed alignment and 
assignment of secondary road number SR 2049 to existing Fifth Street: 

 
REPEAL: 45 MPH ordinance 1066310 on existing NC 119 (Fifth St) 
APPROVE: 45 MPH ordinance 1078403 on SR 2049 (Fifth St) 
 
REPEAL: 25 MPH ordinance 1000201 on existing US 70 (W Center Street)  
APPROVE: 25 MPH ordinance 1078407 on US 70 (W Center Street) 
 
REPEAL: 35 MPH ordinance 1051184 on SR 1007 (Mebane Oaks Road)  
**Note no replacement ordinance required since the posted 35 MPH speed limit is 
covered by General Statutes within municipal limits. 
 
2. To reflect extension of SR 1973 (Tate Avenue) to Corregidor Street 
 
APPROVE: 25 MPH ordinance 1082220 on newly constructed SR 1973 within municipal 
limits south of Roosevelt Street 



 

Mr. Bradley made a motion, seconded by Mr. Ewing, to approve the ordinance changes as 
presented. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Brian Gackstetter, NCDOT Sr. Project Engineer- Rail Division, and Conzuela Cogdell, NCDOT Rail 
Crossing Safety Engineer II, presented a request for Council’s acceptance of the recommendations 
of the Traffic Separation Study and adoption of a Resolution of Intent to for Rail Crossing 
Implementation.  Mr. Gackstetter gave an overview of the rail division projects and work they do.   
In a joint effort with the City of Mebane, Norfolk Southern (NS), the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation Rail Division (NCDOT Rail), and North Carolina Railroad (NCRR), an agreement was 
entered into in 2015 and the Mebane Traffic Separation Study (TSS) was completed. NCDOT Rail 
presented improvement recommendations for several crossings: Gibson Street, Moore Road, 3rd 
Street, 4th Street and 5th Street, to the City Council in public hearings held on September 11, 
2017, and June 4, 2018. Due to unforeseen circumstances, the anticipated construction start date 
of 2019 was delayed.  He stated that tonight, they are formally presenting those recommendations 
as they individually met informally with each Council member to discuss concerns and to receive 
feedback. After those meetings, more information was gathered and they are here tonight to kind 
of wrap that up in a box which will allow them to move forward with implementing the TSS. 
 
Ms. Cogdell went through each crossing recommendation, sharing drawings depicting the 
recommendations, attached.  Ms. Cogdell explained that tonight’s presentation is 
recommendations only and will still need to go through the design process and continued 
coordination with NCRR to come up with a final plan.  NCDOT Rail, utilizing State Funds, will finance 
preliminary engineering and construction for recommended rail crossing improvements, including 
the fencing with the City of Mebane being responsible for fence maintenance.   Mr. Gackstetter 
explained that with the adoption of the Resolution of Intent, all four parties will enter into an 
agreement which will allow them to begin the process, additionally an environmental document 
will need to be completed, roughly a year timeframe. Then the project will be let by Division 7 and 
will be on their time frame to get the project completed, roughly a two-year timeframe.  
 
Mr. Boney shared his displeasure with the fact that Council met individually with the rail division 
team. He stated that the Council should conduct City business in open session. He requested a 
copy of all correspondence between the Council and NCDOT related to this subject. 
 
Mr. Ewing made a motion, seconded by Mr. Burkholder, to adopt the Resolution of Intent of the 
City of Mebane City Council Rail Crossing Implementation. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
RESOLUTION OF INTENT 

CITY OF MEBANE CITY COUNCIL 
RAIL CROSSING IMPLEMENTATION 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation Rail Division (NCDOT RAIL), Norfolk 
Southern (NS), the North Carolina Railroad (NCRR), and the City of Mebane have conducted the 
Mebane Traffic Separation Study (TSS), as presented to the Council on September 11, 2017, and 
June 4, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mebane TSS includes the rail crossings at State Road (SR) 1940- Gibson Road 
(Crossing # 735 464L), SR 1965-Moore Road (Crossing # 735 468N), SR 1962-Third Street (Crossing 
# 735 469V), Fourth Street (Crossing #735 471W); Fifth Street (Old NC 119) (Crossing #735 472D) 
and trespass fencing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the NCDOT RAIL has requested to City of Mebane to accept the recommendations of 
the TSS and agree to the further engineer plan development of safety features at the 
aforementioned crossings and fencing, costs of the same to be borne by NCDOT RAIL, to which 
the City is agreeable;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF MEBANE, that the City hereby adopts the 
Mebane Traffic Separation Study as presented and subject to NCDOT RAIL further developing 
safety improvements for the aforementioned crossings with fencing acceptable to the City; and   



 

THAT the City further agrees that upon satisfactory installation of the trespass fencing along the 
NCRR corridor from mileposts 31.1 to 31.75, the City of Mebane will maintain the fencing at City 
expense. 
 
SO RESOLVED, this the 7th day of November 2022. 

_______________________ 
Ed Hooks, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
Stephanie W. Shaw, Clerk 

 
Mayor Hooks recognized students from Bradford Academy in attendance. 
 
Mr. Mitchell gave an overview of the next item, Clay Street and Fourth Street Infrastructure 
Improvements.  He stated that staff will be requesting at the end of the presentation, a consensus 
for the first part of the plan of action to go to bid which should be a long-term solution to the 
settlement issue. Staff will also share a general presentation of a staff level endeavor for a 2022 
holiday plan of action that is scheduled for November 14th, weather dependent.  
 
Mark Reich, Engineer with Alley, Williams, Carmen and King, Kyle Smith, Mebane Public Utilities 
Director and Chuck Smith, Mebane Public Works Director, each presented a portion of the 
attached PowerPoint, sharing information, a plan of action and cost estimates to address the 
settling issues on Clay Street.  Fire Chief Bob Louis spoke to the fire department’s strategies and 
tactics for fire protection during the impairment, stating that an Incident Action Plan has been 
developed to address concerns related to the project.   

The following summary is staff recommendations for the plan of action: 

• Staff is recommending that 2 contracts be awarded to address the aging infrastructure and 
settling issues. The first contract will be a Utility Contract and will consist of slip lining 
sanitary sewer and stormwater lines; Inject a High-Density Polyurethane Structural Resin 
into the voids to fill the voids and mechanically clean the water lines and install an epoxy 
lining within the water main. 
 

• Bid Date for Utility Contract is scheduled for December 13, 2022, Award of Contract at 
January 2023 Council Meeting and work completed by end of June, 2022. 
 

• The second contract will be for street repairs consisting of installing new concrete bulb-
outs with truncated domes and drainage flumes at both mid-block crossings on Clay Street 
and Fourth Street; milling the existing pavement, making any additional patching required, 
resurfacing, re-installing stamped asphalt at intersections (same pattern as existing), 
installing pavement markings for parking spaces, yield symbols, sharrow (bike lane) 
symbols and converting 3 existing parking spaces to handicap spaces. 
 

• Bid Date for Street Contract is June 1, 2023, Award of Contract at July 2023 Council Meeting 
and work completed by mid-October. 
 

• Staff is also recommending that temporary street repairs be performed on Monday 
November 14, 2022, weather permitting to mill up and repairs areas in need of repairing. 
An alternate Monday-Thursday date will be determined with contractor. Work is 
anticipated to be completed in one-day and will begin at 7:30 am and will require that the 
Clay Street block between N. Third St and N. Fourth St. be closed; however, sidewalks, will 
remain open. 

Staff will provide information to the affected property owners to keep them informed before and 
during the project. Downtime is estimated at 10-15 days with the work being done in the evening 
hours, 9pm-9am.  A proposed schedule of the work to be completed shown in attached 
PowerPoint. 



 

The estimated cost for the Utility Contract is $527,000 of which $432,000 will be funded through 
2022-23 Utility Fund and $95,000 funded through 2022-23 General Fund. Estimated cost for Street 
Contract is $473,000 and funded through 2023-24 contract. 

Cost of Temporary Work is $14,640 and will be funded using downtown crosswalk refurbishing 
project funds. 

After some discussion among Council and staff, Mr. Ewing made a motion, seconded by Ms. 
Burkholder, to proceed with advertising for Utility and Street Contracts per schedule in PowerPoint 
presentation and making temporary street repairs as needed by Public Works Department. The 
motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Davis presented a request on behalf of Destination Downtown Mebane for approval of a street 
closure of Fourth Street between Hwy 70 and Clay Street for the 2022 Hometown Holiday Celebration on 
Saturday, November 19th .  Mr. Bradley made a motion, seconded by Ms. Hadley, to approve the 
street closure as presented. The motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. Davis presented a request for appointment of two (2) Recreation and Parks Advocacy 
Commission members for 2023.  He explained that initially, City Council selected six individuals 
that are serving staggered entry terms of 1, 2, and 3 years.  The two members selected this year 
will begin a three-year term and will be a big part of helping complete the Recreation and Parks 
Master Plan process and helping advocate for the City’s parks, programs, and facilities. Six (6) 
applications were received.  Mr. Bradley made a motion to nominate Jesse Whitaker and Laurie 
Sawyer. Mr. Ewing seconded his motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

Ms. Ownbey presented a request for appointment of one (1) Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Commission (BPAC) member. She stated that there is an open position on the BPAC reserved for 
the Orange County part of Mebane, preferably a resident of the extraterritorial jurisdiction. The 
appointment would fill a vacancy with a term expiring January 2025.  Two (2) applications were 
received, however only one applicant was eligible as the other was a resident of Alamance County. 
Mr. Bradley made a motion, seconded by Mr. White, to appoint James Allen. The motion carried 
unanimously.  

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 

 

ATTEST:       __________________________ 
________________________ ___    Ed Hooks, Mayor 
Stephanie W. Shaw, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                 

 

44 

Figure 19: SR 1940 – Gibson Road (Crossing # 735 464L) Recommendations 



                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                 

 

48 

Figure 21:  SR 1956 – Moore Road (Crossing # 735 468N) Recommendation 

 
 



                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                 

 

50 

Figure 22: SR 1962 – 3rd Street (Crossing # 735 486V) Recommendation 
 
 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                 

 

54 

Figure 24: NC 119 – 5th Street (Crossing # 735 472D) Recommendation 
 

 
 

cbcogdell
Highlight
NC 119 –

cbcogdell
Line

cbcogdell
Text Box
4th Street



                                                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                 

 

56 

Figure 26: NC 119 – 5th Street (Crossing # 735 472D) – Exhibit depicting if sidewalks could be installed on the western side of 5th 
Street, which would require eliminating one of the two southbound travel lanes on Fifth Street. 

 
 

cbcogdell
Line



HDPR INJECTIONS

HDPR Injection Points

Drilling Injection Points

Drilling Injection Points













West Clay Street Voids

Concrete Material

Asphalt Material

Subgrade Material

Asphalt Material

Concrete Material







(9 PM to 9 AM).



• The pictures on the left of the same line 
at the same distance. The top is the pre-
lined condition, and the bottom is post 
lining. 



Scope of Work Clay Street Cost
Fourth Street 

Cost
Total Costs Utility Fund General Fund

8” CIPP (sanitary sewer) $59,000 $16,000 $75,000 $75,000 $0

15” CIPP (storm drainage) $35,000 $0 $35,000 $0 $35,000 

Manhole/Drainage Structure 
Rehab

$20,000 $2,000 $22,000 $14,000 $8,000

Spot Repair(s) (if required) $8,000 $0 $8,000 $8,000 $0 

Engineering and Contingencies $20,000 $6,000 $26,000 $20,000 $6,000

Total $142,000 $24,000 $166,000 $117,000 $49,000 





Scope of Work Clay Street Cost
Fourth Street 

Cost
Total Cost Utility Fund General Fund

HDPR Injection $40,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $40,000

Engineering and Contingencies $8,000 $0 $8,000 $0 $8,000 

Total $48,000 $0 $48,000 $0 $48,000









Fire Protection
• The Fire Department recognizes the need 

for alternative suppression strategies 
during the impairment.

• An Incident Action Plan (IAP) has been 
developed to address the concerns 
related to the project.

• The IAP includes more than one set of 
strategies to account for multiple 
scenarios.

• Fire Department staff members will 
complete additional training sessions 
that will outline the specific strategies 
and tactics needed during the 
impairment.



Scope of Work Clay Street Cost
Fourth Street 

Cost
Total Cost Utility Fund General Fund

Mechanical Cleaning and Liner $100,000 $20,000 $120,000 $120,000 $0

Temporary Water lines $65,000 $20,000 $85,000 $85,000 $0 

Valve Replacements $30,000 $5,000 $35,000 $35,000 $0

Temporary Service Connections $20,000 $5,000 $25,000 $25,000 $0 

Engineering and Contingencies $38,000 $10,000 $48,000 $48,000 $0

Totals $253,000 $60,000 $313,000 $313,000 $0 







Clay Street Mid-Block Crosswalk Exhibit 



Fourth Street Mid-Block Crosswalk Exhibit 



Scope of Work Clay Street Cost
Fourth Street 

Cost
Total Cost Utility Fund General Fund

Milling, Patching and 
Resurfacing

$210,000 $40,000 $250,000 $0 $250,000

Concrete Bulb-Outs and Curb 
Ramps

$25,000 $15,000 $40,000 $0 $40,000 

Stamped Asphalt $95,000 $5,000 $100,000 $0 $100,000

Pavement Markings $8,000 $2,000 $10,000 $0 $10,000 

Engineering and Contingencies $60,000 $13,000 $73,000 $0 $73,000

Totals $398,000 $75,000 $473,000 $0 $473,000 









Scope of Work Clay Street Cost
Fourth Street 

Cost
Total Cost Utility Fund General Fund

Slip Lining Sanitary Sewer Lines $98,000 $21,000 $119,000 $119,000 $0

Slip Lining Stormwater Lines $44,000 $3,000 $47,000 $47,000 

HDPR Injection $48,000 $0 $48,000 $0 $48,000

Water Line Improvements $253,000 $60,000 $313,000 $313,000 $0 

Street Improvements $398,000 $75,000 $473,000 $0 $473,000

Totals $841,000 $159,000 $1,000,000 $432,000 $568,000



Utility Contract Project Schedule:
1. Prepare Bid Documents: Now-Nov. 4

2. Staff Review/Comments: Nov.7-Nov. 11

3. DMDC Hosted Information Session for 
Downtown Business/Property Owners 
November 9th and 10th.

4. Advertisement: Mid November

5. Pre-Bid Meeting:  Nov. 22, 2022

6. Bid Date, Dec.13, 2022

7. Agenda to Council: Late December

8. Award at Council Meeting: Jan. 2023

9. Begin work late January and complete 
work by June 30, 2023

Street Repair Contract Project Schedule:
1. Prepare Bid Documents:  Late March, 2023

2. Staff Review/Comments: April 2023

3. Advertisement: May 2023

4. Pre-Bid Meeting:  May 16th, 2023

5. Bid Date, June 1, 2023

6. Agenda to Council:  Late June 2023

7. Award at Council Meeting: July 2023

8. DMDC Hosted Information Session for 
Downtown Business/Property Owners– Early 
July

9. Begin work mid to late-July and complete work 
by mid October 2023



WEST CLAY STREET
TEMPORARY HOLIDAY 

STREET REPAIRS
North Third Street to 
North Fourth Street

Chuck Smith, Public Works Director



West Clay Street Voids

Concrete Material

Asphalt Material

Subgrade Material

Asphalt Material

Concrete Material



W. Clay St – N. Third St. 
to Mid-Block Crossing

W. Clay St – Mid-Block 
Crossing to N. Fourth St



Proposed Project 
Schedule



West Clay Street - Scope 
of Work & Cost

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

Pavement Repair, 4" Depth, 
2.5" I19.0C and 1.5" S9.5B

61 Tons $240.00 $14,640.00



QUESTIONS



 

AGENDA ITEM #5B 
Petition for Voluntary Contiguous 
Annexation- 
McKay Land NC, LLC 

Meeting Date 
December 5, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
Staff received a petition requesting voluntary contiguous annexation from McKay Land NC, LLC. 

Background 
The applicant is requesting that the described property be annexed into Mebane’s Corporate Limits. This 
is a contiguous annexation containing approximately +/- 6.654 acres located in Alamance County on Wilson 
Road. A Commercial development of a  35,000 square foot bookstore is planned for this property.  

Financial Impact 
The property will be added to the ad valorem tax base of the City once the property is annexed. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Council’s acceptance of the petition, the Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and to 
adopt a Resolution setting a date of public hearing for January 9, 2023. 

Suggested Motion 
I make a motion to accept the petition, the Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and to adopt a Resolution 
setting a date of public hearing for January 9, 2023. 

Attachments 
1. Petition 
2. Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency 
3. Map 
4. Resolution  

 
 

 

 

 



PETITION  REQUESTING  A CONTIGUOUS  ANNEXATION

Annexation  Process  -  Approximately  a 2 Month  Process

1"'  Month-  Submit  a Petition  for  Annexation  to  the  City  Council,  the  Clerk  reports  to City  Council  the
Sufficiency  of  the  Annexation  and  the  City  Council  adopts  a Resolution  to set  a Public  Hearing

2"d Month-  A Public  Hearing  is held  and normally  that  same  night,  the  City  Council  will  adopt  an
Ordinance  to  set  the  effective  date  as the  same  or  the  Council  will  deny  the  request

To the  City  Council  of  the  City  of  Mebane:

1. We  the  undersigned  owners  of  real property  respectfully  request  that  the  area  described
in Paragraph  2 below  be annexed  to  the  City  of  Mebane.

2. The  area  to be annexed  is contiguous  to  the  City  of  Mebane  and  the  boundaries  of
such  territory  are as follows:

*Please include a Description of  Boundaries (Metes and Bounds) on a separate paper.

**3.  We  acknowledge  that  any  zoning  vested  rights  acquired  pursuant  to G.S. 160A-385.1  or
or  G.S. 153A-344.1  must  be declared  and  identified  on this  petition.  We  further
acknowledge  that  failure  to declare  such  rights  on this  petition  shall  result  in a termination
of  vested  rights  previously  acquired  for  the  property.  (If  zoning  vested  rights  are claimed,
indicate  below  and  attach  proof.)

- Name Address Do you  declare

vested  rights

(Yes or  No)

Signature

1.  Andrea  Jacobson
McKay  Land  NC, LLC

745  Jonestown  Road
Winston-Salem,  NC 27103

No

2. V  -/

3.

*Municipality  may  wish  to require  metes  and  bounds  description  or map.  (Provide  2 paper  copies,  an

electronic  copy  and  3 mylars)

**'rhiS  is one  possible  format  for  zoning  vested  rights  declaration.  This  language  may  require

modification  to reflect the requirements  of the municipal zoninB vested rights ordinance, if any.







RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-31 

 
     WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has been 
received; and 
 
     WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition has been 
made; 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mebane, North 
Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1. A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area described herein 
will be held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building at 6:00 p.m. on January 9, 2023. 
 
     Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as follows: 
 
  All that certain tract or parcel of land, being located in Melville Township, Alamance County, North 
Carolina, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
  BEGINNING at an iron pipe found in the southerly right-of-way line of Wilson Road [NCSR 2187]. 
Said iron being the northeasterly corner of  Lot 144 of the W.E. McPherson Estate Subdivision (Plat 
Book 14, Page 60, Alamance County Register of Deeds), said iron having North Carolina Grid 
Coordinates (NAD 83/2011) of North(y) = 845,432.79 feet and East(x) = 1,921,300.48 feet; thence 
with the southerly right-of-way line of Wilson Road North 66 deg. 21’ 23” East a distance of 775.69 
feet to a point at the centerline of Haw Creek; thence with the centerline of Haw Creek the 
following fourteen (14) courses and distances: 

1) South 14 deg. 32’ 48” West a distance of 19.85 feet to a point; 
2) South 17 deg. 40’ 55” West a distance of 44.29 feet to a point; 
3) South 18 deg. 04’ 50” West a distance of 58.79 feet to a point; 
4) South 10 deg. 55’ 57” West a distance of 68.73 feet to a point; 
5) South 10 deg. 09’ 26” West a distance of 52.97 feet to a point; 
6) South 11 deg. 56’ 46” West a distance of 37.59 feet to a point; 
7) South 11 deg. 36’ 51” West a distance of 57.16 feet to a point; 
8) South 16 deg. 01’ 43” West a distance of 48.73 feet to a point; 
9) South 10 deg. 48’ 28” West a distance of 40.91 feet to a point; 
10)  South 06 deg. 01’ 42” West a distance of 57.80 feet to a point; 
11)  South 13 deg. 50’ 44” West a distance of 62.39 feet to a point; 
12)  South 13 deg. 04’ 25” West a distance of 35.14 feet to a point; 
13)  South 03 deg. 08’ 17” West a distance of 56.60 feet to a point; and 
14)  South 17 deg. 11’ 46” West a distance of 36.05 feet to a point at the northeasterly corner 

of Lot 19 of the Woodhaven Subdivision, Section Two (Plat Book 21, Page 55, Alamance 
County Register of Deeds); 

 
  Thence with the northerly line of said Lot 19 South 83 deg. 50’ 23” West a distance of 322.27 feet 
(passing an iron pipe found at a distance of 86.77 feet) to an iron pipe found at the northeasterly 
corner of Lot 18 of said Woodhaven Subdivision, Section Two; thence with the northerly line of said 
Lot 18 South 84 deg. 09’ 52” West a distance of 78.40 feet to an iron pipe found at the southeasterly 
corner of the aforementioned Lot 144 of the W.E. McPherson Estate Subdivision; thence with the 
easterly line of said Lot 144 North 23 deg’ 28” 31” West a distance of 426.74 feet to the point and 
place of BEGINNING, containing 6.654 acres, more or less, BEING ALL of that same property 
described in Deed Book 4226, Pages 977 and 981, Alamance County Register of Deeds. 
 
      Section 3. Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Mebane 
Enterprise, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Mebane, at least ten (10) 
days prior to the date of the public hearing. 
    
  Ed Hooks, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
  
Stephanie W. Shaw, City Clerk 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM #5C 
Petition for Voluntary Contiguous 
Annexation- 
G & L Construction and Larry & Susan 
Wood- Peartree Townhomes 

Meeting Date 
December 5, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
Staff received a petition requesting voluntary contiguous annexation from G & L Construction and Larry & 
Susan Wood. 

Background 
The applicant is requesting that the described property be annexed into Mebane’s Corporate Limits. This 
is a contiguous annexation containing approximately +/- 10.651 acres located in Alamance County on Baker 
Lane.  A residential development of 148 Townhomes is planned for this property, Peartree Townhomes. 

Financial Impact 
The property will be added to the ad valorem tax base of the City once the property is annexed. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Council’s acceptance of the petition, the Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and to 
adopt a Resolution setting a date of public hearing for January 9, 2023. 

Suggested Motion 
I make a motion to accept the petition, the Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and to adopt a Resolution 
setting a date of public hearing for January 9, 2023. 

Attachments 
1. Petition 
2. Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency 
3. Map 
4. Resolution  

 
 

 

 

 



PETITION REQUESTING A CONTIGUOUS ANNEXATION 

Annexation Process – Approximately a 2 Month Process 

1st Month- Submit a Petition for Annexation to the City Council, the Clerk reports to City Council the 
Sufficiency of the Annexation and the City Council adopts a Resolution to set a Public Hearing  
 
2nd Month- A Public Hearing is held and normally that same night, the City Council will adopt an 
Ordinance to set the effective date as the same or the Council will deny the request  

 
 

Date: _______________ 

     To the City Council of the City of Mebane: 

     1.  We the undersigned owners of real property respectfully request that the area described 
           in Paragraph 2 below be annexed to the City of Mebane. 

     2.  The area to be annexed is contiguous to the City of Mebane and the boundaries of 
           such territory are as follows: 

*Please include a Description of Boundaries (Metes and Bounds) on a separate paper. 

   **3.  We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A-385.1 or 
           or G.S. 153A-344.1 must be declared and identified on this petition. We further 
           acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this petition shall result in a termination 
           of vested rights previously acquired for the property.  (If zoning vested rights are claimed, 
           indicate below and attach proof.)  

 

Name Address Do you declare 
vested rights 
(Yes or No) 

Signature 

1.    

2.    

3.    

                            
  

*Municipality may wish to require metes and bounds description or map. (Provide 2 paper copies, an 
electronic copy and 3 mylars) 

**This is one possible format for zoning vested rights declaration.  This language may require 
modification to reflect the requirements of the municipal zoning vested rights ordinance, if any. 

G & L Construction Inc. 518 S Asheboro St.
Liberty, NC 27298

NO

Larry Wood, Jr. & Susan W.
Wood

5067 Harvestview Dr.
Mebane, NC 27302 - 7958

NO

10/21/2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: E28A46F0-31A2-43FE-B664-70255E04CF69DocuSign Envelope ID: 0A64BCF9-B109-4490-B928-F944068FF5AADocuSign Envelope ID: B056F894-6052-4397-A5E0-DC9C5A78561F





BAKER
 LN

VAR
IABLE W

ID
TH

 R
/W

ST
R

AT
FO

R
D

 D
R

60
' P

U
BL

IC
 R

/W
 (D

B 
31

/2
4)

TOTAL AREA TO BE ANNEXED
10.651 ACRES

0.0166 Sq. MILES

EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE
CORPORATE LIMITS

EXISTING CITY
OF MEBANE

CORPORATE LIMITS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

M
EB

AN
E

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
LI

M
IT

S

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

M
EB

AN
E

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
LI

M
IT

S

NEW CITY OF MEBANE
CORPORATE LIMITS NEW CITY OF MEBANE

CORPORATE LIMITS

EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE
CORPORATE LIMITS

NEW CITY OF MEBANE
CORPORATE LIMITS

N
EW

 C
IT

Y 
O

F 
M

EB
AN

E
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

LI
M

IT
S

EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE
CORPORATE LIMITS

N
EW

 C
IT

Y 
O

F 
M

EB
AN

E
C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

LI
M

IT
S

NEW CITY OF MEBANE
CORPORATE LIMITS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

M
EB

AN
E

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

E 
LI

M
IT

S

"POB"

(OUT) (IN)

(IN)

(O
U

T)

(IN
)

(IN)

(IN)

(IN)

(IN
)

(O
U

T)

(IN)

(OUT)

(IN
)

(OUT)

(IN
)

(IN
)

(IN)

(IN
)

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING

LEGEND

OTHERWISE DESCRIBED

EXISTING MONUMENT FOUND; 

IRON ROD OR PIPE SET

CONCRETE MONUMENT

IRON ROD OR PIPE UNLESS 

MATHEMATICAL POINT;
NO MONUMENT SET 21-0047_ANNEX

21-0047

TT

CF

EXISTING IRON PIPEEIP

License #: P-0339
320 Executive Court
Hillsborough, NC 27278-8551
Voice: (919) 732-3883     Fax: (919) 732-6676
www.summitde.com

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY PERSON,
UNLESS ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION OF
LICENSED ARCHITECT, PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEER,  LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, OR
LAND SURVEYOR TO ALTER ANY ITEM ON
THIS DOCUMENT IN ANY WAY. ANY LICENSEE
WHO ALTERS THIS DOCUMENT IS REQUIRED
BY LAW TO AFFIX HIS OR HER SEAL AND THE
NOTATION "ALTERED BY" FOLLOWED BY HIS
OR HER SIGNATURE AND SPECIFIC
DESCRIPTION OF THE ALTERATIONS.

COPYRIGHT        2022

DRAWING ALTERATION

SUMMIT
©

DESIGN AND ENGINEERING

PROJECT MANAGER

DRAWN BY

MELVILLE  TWP., ALAMANCE CO., NORTH CAROLINA
FIELD WORK PERFORMED MAY 24 ,2021

PROPERTIES AS DESCRIBED IN
DEED BOOK 2648 PAGE 432 & DEED BOOK 2521 PAGE 876

STANDING IN THE NAMES OF
G & L CONSTRUCTION INC & LARRY JR & SUSAN W WOOD

N
:\

20
21

\2
1-

00
47

.0
02

 B
ak

er
La

ne
TH

\S
ur

ve
y\

D
W

G
_S

UR
V

EY
\2

1-
00

47
.0

02
-A

N
N

EX
.d

w
g 

  1
8X

24
   

11
/1

1/
20

22
 1

1:
03

 A
M

SITE

FINAL PLAT OF:
CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS EXTENSION

 & VOLUNTARY CONTIGUOUS ANNEXATION

Not for Recordation, Conveyance or Sales
PRELIMINARY PLAT

'

'
'

'

'
'

'

'

' ' '
'

' '

'

'
'

'

'

'
“ ”

PIN
PIN #'s 9824071555 & 9824073438



RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
QUESTION OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-31 

 
     WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described herein has been 
received; and 
 
     WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition has been 
made; 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mebane, North 
Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1. A public hearing on the question of annexation of the area described herein 
will be held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building at 6:00 p.m. on January 9, 2023. 
 
     Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as follows: 
 
  All that certain tract or parcel of land, being located in Melville Township, Alamance County, North 
Carolina, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN MELVILLE TOWNSHIP, ALAMANCE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT AN EXISTING AXLE IN THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS, SAID AXEL 
BEING IN THE NORTHERN RIGHT OF WAY OF BAKER LANE AND MARKING THE SOUTHWESTERN 
CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY CARRENO DEVELOPERS LLC. (DEED BOOK 3579, PAGE 629 
ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY) AND HAVING NC GRID COORDINATES N: 846,796.79', E: 
1,920,261.63' NAD 83/11 AS DETERMINED BY AN ACTUAL GPS SURVEY (COMBINED GRID FACTOR 
0. 99995022); THENCE WITH THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND 
WITH THE NORTHERN RIGHT OF WAY OF BAKER LANE N 73° 21' 35" W 246.41’ TO AN EXISTING 
IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE MARKING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY 
QUALITY PROPERTIES TODAY LLC. (DEED BOOK 4033, PAGE 871 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY); 
THENCE LEAVING THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS AND PROCEEDING WITH THE 
NEW CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF 
QUALITY PROPERTIES TODAY LLC. N 16° 28' 53" E 230.85’ TO AN EXISTING IRON ROD IN THE 
EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS, SAID IRON ROD MARKING SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY LORI W. LOWE (DEED BOOK 3271, PAGE 354 ALAMANCE COUNTY 
REGISTRY); THENCE LEAVING THE NEW CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS AND PROCEEDING 
WITH THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN 
LINE OF LORI W. LOWE N 16° 21' 49" E 119.26’ MORE OR LESS TO A CALCULATED POINT IN THE 
LINE OF LORI W. LOWE; THENCE LEAVING THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS AND 
PROCEEDING WITH THE NEW CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE 
SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF LORI W. LOWE N 16° 21' 49" E 80.97’ TO A NEW IRON PIPE SET AT THE 
NORTHEASTERN CORNER OF LORI W. LOWE; THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE NEW CITY OF 
MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE NORTHEASTERN LINE OF LORI W. LOWE N 72° 
51' 07" W 195.51’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE IN THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE 
LIMITS, SAID IRON PIPE BEING IN THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY LINDA 
S. ALBRIGHT (DEED BOOK 2521, PAGE 872 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY) THENCE WITH THE 
EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF 
LINDA S. ALBRIGHT N 19° 26' 54" E 44.87’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE MARKING 
THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY LARRY P. JR. & SUSAN W. WOOD 
(DEED BOOK 797, PAGE 809 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY); THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE 
EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF 
LARRY P. JR. & SUSAN W. WOOD N 19° 49' 51" E 125.97’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON 
PIPE MARKING THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY KRISTIN MARIE 
CLEVELAND (DEED BOOK 4236, PAGE 803 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY); THENCE CONTINUING 
WITH THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN 
LINE KRISTIN MARIE CLEVELAND N 19° 42' 52" E 126.00’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON 
PIPE MARKING THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY GREENLAND HOMES 
LLC. (DEED BOOK 4130, PAGE 950 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY); THENCE CONTINUING WITH 
THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE 
OF GREENLAND HOMES LLC. N 18° 41' 22" E 125.86’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE 



MARKING THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY JENNIFER SUE M. NEWLIN 
(DEED BOOK 3588, PAGE 430 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY); THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE 
EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHEASTERN LINE OF 
JENNIFER SUE M. NEWLIN N 18° 41' 52" E 196.11’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE 
MARKING THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY JOSEPH L. & ISOBEL B. 
WIGGS (DEED BOOK 2003, PAGE 356 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY); THENCE LEAVING THE 
EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS AND PROCEEDING WITH THE NEW CITY OF 
MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH JOSEPH L. & ISOBEL B. WIGGS THE FOLLOWING 
THREE (3) CALLS, 1) S 70° 54' 34" E 142.41’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, 2) N 19° 36' 49" E 80.41’ TO 
AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, 3) N 13° 46' 04" E 115.77’ TO AN EXISTING IRON ROD, SAID IRON ROD 
BEING ON THE SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY OF STRATFORD ROAD; THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE 
NEW CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE EASTERN RIGHT OF WAY OF 
STRATFORD ROAD N 13° 50' 14" E 60.56’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE MARKING THE 
SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY HENRY J. & BARBARA A. EIDEN (DEED 
BOOK 507, PAGE 308 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY); THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE NEW CITY 
OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH HENRY J. & BARBARA A. EIDEN THE 
FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS, 1) N 13° 42' 02" E 32’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, 2) N 09° 26' 29" E 
73.48’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE IN THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS, SAID 
IRON PIPE MARKING THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY ARROWHEAD 
GREENS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC. (DEED BOOK 4069, PAGE 148 ALAMANCE COUNTY 
REGISTRY); THENCE LEAVING THE NEW CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS AND PROCEEDING 
WITH THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHWESTERN 
LINE OF ARROWHEAD GREENS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION INC. S 73° 15' 29" E 25.06’ TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE MARKING THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY 
OWNED BY HOLLY A. & TYLER W. MICHELS (DEED BOOK 4254, PAGE 504 ALAMANCE COUNTY 
REGISTRY); THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS 
ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF HOLLY A. & TYLER W. MICHELS S 73° 42' 08" E 
68.27’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE MARKING THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF 
THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY WENDY W. KUAN (DEED BOOK 4248, PAGE 140 ALAMANCE COUNTY 
REGISTRY); THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS 
ALONG AND WITH THE SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF WENDY W. KUAN S 73° 58' 01" E 99.84’ TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON PIPE MARKING THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY 
OWNED BY MOHAMED DAOUDI & JAOUDA RHAZZALI (DEED BOOK 4324, PAGE 570 ALAMANCE 
COUNTY REGISTRY); THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE 
LIMITS ALONG AND WITH MOHAMED DAOUDI & JAOUDA RHAZZALI THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) 
CALLS, 1) S 73° 28' 53" E 52.05’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, 2) S 73° 42' 31" E 35.78’ TO AN EXISTING 
AXLE, SAID AXLE MARKING THE NORTHWESTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY MEBANE 
OPERATING COMPANY LLC. (DEED BOOK 4263, PAGE 762 ALAMANCE COUNTY REGISTRY); THENCE 
CONTINUING WITH THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE 
NORTHWESTERN LINE OF MEBANE OPERATING COMPANY LLC. S 16° 18' 34" W 833.16’ TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIPE SAID IRON PIPE MARKING THE NORTHWESTERN CORNER OF THAT PROPERTY 
OWNED BY CARRENO DEVELOPERS LLC. (DEED BOOK 3579, PAGE 629 ALAMANCE COUNTY 
REGISTRY); THENCE LEAVING THE EXISTING CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS AND 
PROCEEDING WITH THE NEW CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS ALONG AND WITH THE 
NORTHWESTERN LINE OF CARRENO DEVELOPERS LLC. S 16° 18' 17" W 574.47’ BACK TO THE POINT 
AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 10.651 ACRES OR 0.0166 SQUARE MILES MORE OR LESS. 
AS SHOWN ON PLAT ENTITLED “FINAL PLAT OF: CITY OF MEBANE CORPORATE LIMITS EXTENSION 
& VOLUNTARY CONTIGUOUS ANNEXATION”, BY THOMAS A. TELLUP, PLS, SUMMIT DESIGN AND 
ENGINEERING SERVICES PROJECT 21-0047, DATED NOVEMBER 4, 2022, TO WHICH PLAT 
REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE FOR A MORE PARTICULAR DESCRIPTION OF SAME. 
 
      Section 3. Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Mebane 
Enterprise, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Mebane, at least ten (10) 
days prior to the date of the public hearing. 
 
    
  Ed Hooks, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Stephanie W. Shaw, City Clerk 



 

AGENDA ITEM #5D 
Water Resource Recovery Facility 
(WRRF) Expansion Capital Project 
Ordinance Amendment 5 

Meeting Date 
December 5, 2022 
Presenter 
Daphna Schwartz, Finance Director 

Public Hearing 
Yes  No  

Summary 
The purpose of this item is to amend the WRRF Expansion Capital Project Ordinance to reflect the American 
Rescue Plan (ARP) Grant accepted by the City Council. 

Background 
At the November 7, 2022 meeting, the City Council passed a resolution to accept the ARP Grant offer of 
$11,925,000. 

Financial Impact 
This amendment will result in grant revenue of $11,925,000.  American Rescue Plan procedures will have 
to be followed. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approving the WRRF Expansion Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 5. 

Suggested Motion 
Move to approve the WRRF Expansion Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 5. 

Attachments 
1. Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 5 – WRRF Expansion Project 



Capital Project Ordinance for the City of Mebane 
Water Resource Recovery Facility Expansion 

Amendment 5 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the City of Mebane, North Carolina that, pursuant to Section 
13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital project ordinance 
amendment 4 is hereby adopted: 
 
 Section 1:  The project authorized is the design and construction of Water Resource Recovery 
Facility 0.5 MGD Expansion to be financed by Utility Fund reserves, American Rescue Plan (ARP) funds, 
State Revolving Fund, and Revenue Bonds. 
 
 Section 2:  The officers of this City are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within 
the terms of the budget contained herein. 
 
 Section 3:  The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the project: 

 
Project Budget  

Design & Engineering  $               3,513,200  
Construction                                                                         11,925,000 
Land Purchase                       286,800  

  $             15,725,000  
 
 Section 4:  The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete the project: 

 Project Budget  

Transfer from Utility Fund   $              3,800,000 
ARP Funds 11,925,000 

             $       15,725,000 
 
 Section 5:  The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Capital Project Fund 
sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the General Statutes of 
North Carolina. 
 
 Section 6:  Funds may be advanced from the Water and Sewer Fund for the purpose of making 
payments as due. 
 

Section 7:  The Finance Officer is hereby directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial 
status of each project element in Section 3. 

 
Section 8:  The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs 

and revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to this Board. 
 
Section 9:  Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk to the 

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project. 
 
This is the 5th  day of December 2022. 



Monday, January 9, 2023 Regular Meeting

Monday, February 6, 2023 Regular Meeting

Monday, March 6, 2023 Regular Meeting

Wednesday, March 22, 2023 *Budget Meeting

Thursday, March 30, 2023 *Budget Meeting

Monday, April 3, 2023              Regular Meeting

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 *Budget Meeting

Monday, May 1, 2023 Regular Meeting

Monday, May 1, 2023 Manager's Recommended Budget

Monday, June 5, 2023 Regular Meeting

Monday, June 5, 2023 Public Hearing for Budget
Monday, July 03, 2023 or 

Monday, July 10, 2023
pending Council's decision regarding           

July 4th Holiday (Tuesday)

Regular Meeting

Monday, August 7, 2023                Regular Meeting

Monday, September 11, 2023 Regular Meeting

Monday, October 2, 2023 Regular Meeting

Monday, November 6, 2023 Regular Meeting

Monday, December 4, 2023 Regular Meeting

Regular Meeting begin at 6:00pm

Other Meeting times vary

*Budget Workshop dates are tentative

City of Mebane
2023 Regular Meetings and FY 2023-24 Budget Calendar

DRAFT



AGENDA ITEM #6A 
Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits-  
Voluntary Contiguous Annexation-  
Sarah S. Bradley, J. Thomas Scott, Tammy C. 
Wilson, Steven S. Scott and Linda P. Scott 

Meeting Date 
December 5, 2022 

Presenter  
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

Summary 
The Council will consider the approval of an Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits as the next step in 
the annexation process. This is a contiguous annexation of two properties with frontage on Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road and Senator Ralph Scott Parkway totaling +/- 94.691 acres for Crow Industrial, a light 
industrial development/shell building which is currently under review by City staff. 

Background 
At the November 7, 2022, Council Meeting, Council accepted the petition for annexation and the Clerk’s 
certificate of sufficiency and adopted a Resolution setting a date of Public Hearing for December 5, 2022, 
to consider approval of extending Mebane’s corporate limits. The Public Hearing Notice was properly 
advertised.  

Financial Impact 
The property and improvements will be added to the ad valorem tax base for the City once the property is 
annexed as determined by the state statute. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the adoption of an Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits of the City of Mebane, 
North Carolina. 

Suggested Motion 
I make a motion to adopt an Ordinance to Extend the Corporate Limits of the City of Mebane, North 
Carolina to include the 94.691 acres. 

Attachments 
1. Ordinance 
2. Map 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
 OF THE CITY OF MEBANE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
Mail after recording to: City of Mebane, Attn: City Clerk, 106 E. Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302 

 
Ordinance No. 157 

 
     WHEREAS, the City Council has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-31 to annex the area 
described below; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate the 
sufficiency of the petition; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public hearing 
on the question of this annexation was held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building 
at 6:00 p.m. on December 5, 2022, after due notice by the Mebane Enterprise on 
November 23, 2022; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of G.S. 160A-
31; 
 
     NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mebane, North 
Carolina that: 
 
     Section 1.     By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the following described 
territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of Mebane as of December 5, 2022: 
 
Being all that certain land more particularly described as follows: 
 
COMMENCING at NGS Monument “Hawfields”, having NCSPCS Coordinates of Northing: 
840,044.17’ Easting: 1,909,650.87’, thence North 13°05’23” West a distance of 1,447.31 feet to an 
existing iron pipe on the northern corner of Hawfields Presbyterian Church [1] (GPIN# 9804901755 
/ Deed Book 998, Page 745 (also see Deed Book 2597, Page 330, and Plat Book 71, Page 495), the 
point of BEGINNING; thence along the line of Hawfields Presbyterian Church [1] the following three 
(3) calls: South 55°38'37" West a distance of 640.15 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence South 
44°05'04" West a distance of 256.98 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence South 40°47'00" West a 
distance of 499.10 feet to an existing iron pipe on the northern line of Hawfields Presbyterian 
Church [2] (GPIN# 9804802087 / Deed Book 998, Page 745); thence with the line of Hawfields 
Presbyterian Church North 77°51'02" West a distance of 653.47 feet to an existing iron pipe on the 
eastern line of Exeter 2125 Senator Ralph Scott LP (GPIN# 9803794914 / Deed Book 3706, Page 
292 (also see Plat Book 78, Page 56); thence with the line of Exeter 2125 Senator Ralph Scott LP 
North 30°42'00" West a distance of 16.70 feet to a set iron pipe on the southern Right of Way of 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway (a public 60’ R/W); thence continuing North 30°42'00" West a 
distance of 60.02 feet to a set iron pipe on the northern R/W of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway, and 
the southeastern corner of BT-OH LLC (GPIN# 9804314534 / Deed Book 4096, Page 653 (also see 
Plat Book 82, Page 91); thence continuing along the line of BT-OH LLC the following two (2) calls: 
North 30°42'00" West a distance of 1,345.68 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence North 30°42'00" 
West a distance of 1,077.13 feet to a set iron pipe on the southern R/W of Interstate 40-85 (a 
variable width public R/W; thence along the southern R/W of Interstate 40-85, and Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road (a variable width public R/W) the following ten (10) calls: with a curve turning to 
the left with an arc length of 384.59', with a radius of 3,949.72', with a chord bearing of North 



78°33'35" East, with a chord length of 384.44' to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence North 86°16'15" East 
a distance of 98.09 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence North 79°00'44" East a distance of 195.74 
feet to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence with a curve turning to the right with an arc length of 204.08', 
with a radius of 1,829.86', with a chord bearing of North 84°13'55" East, with a chord length of 
203.98' to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence North 89°27'20" East a distance of 195.78 feet to a NCDOT 
R/W disc; thence North 88°51'22" East a distance of 206.74 feet to a point; thence with a curve 
turning to the left with an arc length of 125.25', with a radius of 1,225.92', with a chord bearing of 
North 82°19'31" East, with a chord length of 125.20' to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence North 76°15'53" 
East a distance of 177.16 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence South 64°11'31" East a distance of 
131.35 feet to a set iron pipe, and passing an existing iron pipe at 63.14 feet; thence South 
39°46'26" East a distance of 107.18 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc; thence crossing the R/W of 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road North 49°23’29” East a distance of 130.59 feet to a NCDOT R/W disc 
on the eastern R/W of Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and the line of PFJ Southeast LLC (GPIN# 
9804836168 / Deed Book 3603, Page 741); thence continuing with the line of PFJ Southeast LLC 
the following two (2) calls: South 41°02’06” East a distance of 62.79 feet to a point; thence South 
37°42’26” East a distance of 251.62 feet to an existing iron pipe on the corner of Trollingwood-
Hawfields LLC (GPIN# 9804922987 / Deed Book 2835, Page 293 (also see Plat Book 73, Page 102); 
thence with the line of Trollingwood-Hawfields LLC the following three (3) calls: with a curve turning 
to the left with an arc length of 45.27', with a radius of 1,819.86', with a chord bearing of South 
33°37'37" East, with a chord length of 45.27 feet to a point; thence South 07°50’12” East a distance 
of 70.70 feet to a point; thence South 32°33’41” East a distance of 126.24 feet to an existing iron 
pipe on the corner of John A. Williams (GPIN# 9804922954 / Deed Book 3915, Page 293 (also see 
Plat Book 73, Page 102); thence with the line of John A. Williams, and Trollingwood-Hawfields LLC 
the following two (2) calls: South 36°41’39” East a distance of 254.39 feet to a point; thence South 
41°08’05” East a distance of 170.92 feet to a point; thence crossing the R/W of Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road South 48°51’55” West a distance of 60.00 feet to the western R/W of Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road; thence with the western R/W of Trollingwood-Hawfields Road the following seven 
(7) calls: South 41°08’05” East a distance of 218.97 feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 34°46’08” 
East a distance of 14.34 feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 34°46’08” East a distance of 88.97 
feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 41°03’45” East a distance of 99.24 feet to a set iron pipe; 
thence 42°18’44” East a distance of 316.75 feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 46°49’31” East a 
distance of 29.36 feet to a set iron pipe; thence South 41°01’06” East a distance of 126.79 feet to 
a set iron pipe; thence South 55°38'37" West a distance of 11.14 feet to the point of BEGINNING, 
containing an area of 4,124,746 square feet, or 94.691 acres, more or less. 
 
     Section 2.     Upon and after December 5, 2022 the above-described territory and its 
citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force 
in the City of Mebane and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other 
parts of the City of Mebane.  Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to 
G.S. 160A-58.10. 
 
     Section 3.     The Mayor of the City of Mebane shall cause to be recorded in the office 
of the Register of Deeds of Alamance County and in the office of the Secretary of State at 
Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 
above, together with duly certified copy of this ordinance.  Such a map shall also be 
delivered to the Alamance County Board of Elections as required by G.S. 163-288.1. 
 
Adopted this 5th day of December, 2022. 
 
       City of Mebane 
 
                                                                                      _____________________________ 

                                                                                      Ed Hooks, Mayor 
ATTEST:                                
                                        
_______________________________                        
Stephanie W. Shaw, City Clerk    
                                                                                              Approved as to form: 
 

 ________________________________ 
Lawson Brown, City Attorney 



L=134.04'

CH=N 53°17
'23" E

R= 830.00'

A=134.19'

N 57°03'15" E
29.97' (⅊)

S 33°03'04" E
132.60' (⅊)

N 41°03'45" W
359.19' (⅊)

S 52°59'52" W
31.93' (⅊)

EXISTING VARIABLE WIDTH
CITY OF MEBANE

PERMANENT DRAINAGE EASEMENT
PB 76, PG 104

DB 3290, PG 590

EXISTING VARIABLE WIDTH
CITY OF MEBANE
PERMANENT DRAINAGE EASEMENT
PB 76, PG 104
DB 3290, PG 590

EXISTING VARIABLE WIDTH
CITY OF MEBANE

PERMANENT DRAINAGE EASEMENT
PB 76, PG 104

DB 3290, PG 590

9 .7 2 '
.3 1'
4 '2 9" E

6 .63 '

(TIE ONLY)
L=856.63'

CH=S 87°34'29" W
R=3,949.72'

A=858.31'

EXISTING 30' PERMANENT
CITY OF MEBANE
SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
PB 76, PG 293
DB 3355, PG 792

EXISTING VARIABLE WIDTH
NCDOT PERMANENT DRAINAGE EASEMENT
DB 845, PG 831

S 36°41'05" E
240.35' (⅊)

N 86°16'15" E
98.09'

L=125.20'
CH=N 82°19'31" E

R= 1,225.92'
A=125.25'

S 39°46'26" E
107.18'

S 54°43'59" E
80.66' (⅊)

S 34°46'08" E
88.97'

S 41°03'45" E
99.24'

S 52°12'53" W
64.67' (⅊)

N 48°39'30" E

7.18' (⅊)

L=22.28'
CH=N 50°34'42" E

R= 390.00'
A=22.28'

N 30°42'00" W
16.70'

S 46°49'31" E
29.36'

S 41°01'06" E
126.79'

L=203.98'
CH=N 84°13'55" E

R= 1,829.86'
A=204.08'

L=384.44'
CH=N 78°33'35" E

R= 3,949.72'
A=384.59'

S 85°36'03" E

162.17' (⅊)

N 79°00'44" E
195.74'

N 89°27'20" E
195.78'

N 88°51'22" E
206.74'

N 76°15'53" E
177.16'

S 64°11'31" E
131.35' (TOTAL)

S 02°28'59" W
191.86' (⅊)

N 41°24'16" W
41.33' (⅊)

11.14'

N 30°42'00" W
60.02'

S 41°08'05" E
808.13' (⅊)

N/F
SWORDFISH PARK LLC

PIN# 160529
GPIN# 9804921054
DB 3898, PG 409

N 49°23'29" E
130.59'

S 41°02'06" E
62.79'

S 57°55'17" W
  1,5

64.91' (⅊)

63.14' 68.20'

S 39°36'24" E  342.97' (
⅊)

S 55°38'37" W
  651.2

9'

(TOTAL)

S 44°0
5'04" W

256.98'

S 4
0°

47
'00

" W
  4

99
.10

'
N 77°51'02" W  653.47'

N 57°55'17" E  1,5
46.83'

 (⅊)

N 44°14
'58" E

  1
,541.0

9'

181.97'

394.97'

300.15'

200.00'

379.43'

33.64'

532.31'

400.35'

N 30°42'00" W
  1,077.13' (TOTAL)

N 30°42'00" W
  1,345.68' (TOTAL)

N/F
BT-OH LLC
PIN# 160091

GPIN# 9804314534
DB 4096, PG 653

PB 82, PG 91

N/F
HAWFIELDS PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

PIN# 160375
GPIN# 9804802087

DB 998, PG 745

N/F
HAWFIELDS PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

PIN# 160518
GPIN# 9804901755

DB 998, PG 745
DB 2597, PG 330

PB 71, PG 495

(TIE TO NGS M
ONUM

ENT)

S 13°05'23" E  1,447.31' [GRID]

640.15'

(TIE ONLY)S 77°50'26" E  346.60'

S 
16

°4
0'5

0"
 W

18
1.1

4'
(T

IE 
ON

LY
)

SARAH BRADLEY, ET AL
GPIN# 9804810638

DB 3859, PG 935
PB 71, PG 495

SARAH BRADLEY, ET AL
GPIN# 9804720640

DB 3859, PG 935
PB 76, PG 191

P.O.B.
EIP

N/F
PFJ SOUTHEAST LLC

PIN# 160377
GPIN# 9804836168

DB 3603, PG 741

N/F
TROLLINGWOOD-HAWFIELDS LLC

PIN# 170381
GPIN# 9804922987
DB 2835, PG 293

PB 73, PG 102

N/F
JOHN A. WILLIAMS

PIN# 160530
GPIN# 9804922954

DB 3915, PG 279
PB 73, PG 102

N/F
MARTIN L. SHOFFNER

PIN# 160531
GPIN# 9804927610
DB 3973, PG 269
PB 64, PG 487

N/F
MARTIN L. SHOFFNER

PIN# 160528
GPIN# 9804920166
DB 3973, PG 269
PB 64, PG 487

N/F
SWORDFISH PARK LLC

PIN# 160532
GPIN# 9804928118
DB 3331, PG 348

N/F
HOWARD P. NEESE, ET AL

PIN# 160522
GPIN# 9804913675

DB 309, PG 539

S 41°08'05" E  218.97'

L=45.27'
CH=S 33°37'37" E
R= 1,819.86'
A=45.27'

S 07°50'12" E
70.70'

S 32°33'41" E
126.24'

S 36°41'39" E
254.39'

S 41°08'05" E
170.92'

S 48°51'55" W
60.00'

S 34°46'08" E
14.34'

PROPERTY LINE

IS CENTERLINE OF ROAD

S 37°42'26" E
251.62'

S 42°18'44" E
316.75'

1"=200'

EJS

DEB

05
 A

U
G

 2
2

TO
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

M
EB

AN
E

C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
©

 2
02

2 
 B

AL
LE

N
TI

N
E 

AS
SO

C
IA

TE
S,

 P
.A

.
TH

IS
 D

O
C

U
M

EN
T 

IS
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
O

F 
BA

LL
EN

TI
N

E
AS

SO
C

IA
TE

S,
 P

.A
. A

LL
 R

IG
H

TS
 R

ES
ER

VE
D

. A
N

Y 
RE

PR
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

O
F 

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
O

R 
PO

SS
ES

SI
O

N
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
PR

IO
R

PE
RM

IS
SI

O
N

 O
F 

BA
LL

EN
TI

N
E 

AS
SO

C
IA

TE
S,

 P
.A

. W
IL

L 
BE

SU
BJ

EC
T 

TO
 L

EG
AL

 A
C

TI
O

N
.

JOB NUMBER:

DATE:

SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

122007.02

05 AUG 22

SARAH S. BRADLEY, ET AL
917 ARROWHEAD LN
MEBANE, NC 27302

CROW HOLDINGS
CHRISTOPHER URQUHART
PH: 704.236.2440
EMAIL: curquhart@crowholdings.com

1. THIS IS A SURVEY OF AN EXISTING PARCEL(S) OF LAND. THIS IS AN ANNEXATION PLAT.
2. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON NC GRID NAD 83 FROM VRS DATA UTILIZING REAL TIME KINEMATICS

SOLUTIONS.
3. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCES, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
4. AREAS COMPUTED USING COORDINATE GEOMETRY.
5. SITE ADDRESS: 1447 TROLLINGWOOD-HAWFIELDS RD, MEBANE, NC 27302
6. FLOOD NOTE: A PORTION OF THIS SITE IS LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA OR FUTURE

CONDITIONS FLOOD HAZARD AREAS, AS SHOWN ON:
FIRM PANEL: 3710980400 K
EFFECTIVE DATE: 11/17/2017

7. ADJOINER INFORMATION SHOWN FROM ALAMANCE COUNTY GIS AS OF AUGUST 5, 2022, AT 4:00 PM.

 I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS OF THE FOLLOWING TYPE:
G.S. 47-30 (f)(11)(c)(1). THIS SURVEY IS OF AN EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND AND DOES NOT
CREATE A NEW STREET OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET.

I, DAVID E. BOWERS, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL
SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN BOOK AND PAGE (AS
SHOWN); THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AND DRAWN FROM
INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE (AS SHOWN); THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS
1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITNESS
MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

 DAY OF , A.D. 2022.

___________________________________
DAVID E. BOWERS   PLS   L-4966

PARCEL EXISTING AREA TOTAL AREA

SARAH BRADLEY, ET AL
GPIN# 9804810638

DB 3859, PG 935
PB 71, PG 495

3,109,466 SQ FT
71.383 AC

4,124,746 SQ FT
94.691 AC

SARAH BRADLEY, ET AL
GPIN# 9804720640

DB 3859, PG 935
PB 76, PG 191

843,468 SQ FT
19.363 AC

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAYS 171,812 SQ FT
3.945 AC

L-4966
SEAL

25
 O

C
T 

22
TO

 C
IT

Y 
O

F 
M

EB
AN

E

100200 0 200 400

DB 998, PG 745 DB 2597, PG 330 DB 3331, PG 348
DB 3603, PG 741 DB 3859, PG 935 DB 3859, PG 941
DB 3898, PG 409
PB 64, PG 487 PB 71, PG 495 PB 73, PG 102
PB 75, PG 460 PB 76, PG 104 PB 76, PG 191
PB 78, PG 121 PB 82, PG 91

NGS MONUMENT (POC)
"HAWFIELDS"
NCSCPCS NAD83/2011
N:840,044.17'
E:1,909,650.87'

THIS TRACT OF LAND IS WITHIN THE CITY OF MEBANE'S JURISDICTION.
NO APPROVAL IS REQUIRED OF THE PLANNING BOARD OR CITY COUNCIL.

PLANNING DIRECTOR DATE

S NC HIGHWAY

119

OLD HILLSBOROUGH RD

S 5TH ST

I-40 / I-85

TROLLINGWOOD
HAWFIELDS

RD



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #6B 
RZ 22-15 
Conditional Rezoning – Crow Industrial 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 

Applicant 
CHI/Acquisitions, L. P.  
4064 Colony Road, Suite 405 
Charlotte, NC 28211 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

  

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
1447 Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road 

Alamance County GPINs: 
9804810638 & 
9804720640  

Proposed Zoning 
LM (CD) 

Current Zoning 
B-2, LM 

Size 
 +/-77.69 acres  

Surrounding Zoning 
LM, HM, B-2, R-20, MHP 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Industrial, Commercial, 
Residential 

Utilities 
To be extended at 
developer’s expense 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Watershed 
No 

City Limits 
No 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Application Brief 
See Planning Project Report for more details. 

Recommendations 

Technical Review Committee: 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan four 
times and the applicant has revised the plan to reflect the comments.  

Planning Staff: 

The proposed development “Crow Industrial” is consistent with the 
guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. Specifically, it is located in an 
industrial growth strategy area and serves Goal 1.7.  The site is part of 
the North Carolina Commerce Park and the proposed project is in 
harmony with nearby light and heavy industrial uses.   

Planning Board: 
At their November 14 meeting, the Planning Board voted 4-2 to 
recommend approval of the rezoning request. 

Zoning & Land Use Report 

Jurisdiction: Mebane Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 

Proposed Use By-Right (Yes/No): No 

Type of Rezoning Request: Conditional 

Special Use Request (Yes/No): No 

 Consistency with Mebane By Design (Yes/No):  Yes 

Utilities Report 

Available Utilities (Yes/No): Yes 

Adequate Stormwater Control (Yes/No): Yes 

Innovative Stormwater Control (Yes/No): No 

Consistency with Long-Range Utility Plan (Yes/No): Yes 

Transportation Report 

Traffic Impact Analysis Required (Yes/No): Yes 

Multi-Modal Improvements (Yes/No): Yes 

Consistency with Bike/Ped Transportation Plan (Yes/No):  Yes 

 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

Summary 
CHI/Acquisitions, L.P. is requesting approval to conditionally rezone two properties totaling +/- 77.69 acres 
located at 1447 Trollingwood Hawfields Road (GPIN 9804720640 and portion of GPIN 9804810638) from 
B-2 and LM to LM (CD) to allow for a light industrial development including three warehouse buildings. The 
property is located in Alamance County in the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). A request for annexation 
has been submitted to the City and the public hearing is scheduled for the December City Council meeting. 
CHI/Acquisitions, L.P. has the property under contract to purchase, contingent upon approval of the 
conditional rezoning. 

The site-specific plan features a subdivision of the properties north of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway into 
three lots with warehouse buildings on each lot. Building 1 is proposed at +/- 279,000 square feet, Building 
2 at +/- 248,000 square feet, and Building 3 at +/- 156,000 square feet. The site plan shows four driveways, 
with two on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and two on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. One of the driveways 
on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway will provide shared access to Buildings 2 and 3. The following conditions 
are proposed with the conditional rezoning request:  

Proposed Conditions of Zoning District Mebane UDO Requirements 

Dedication of a portion of the property south of 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway to the City of Mebane 
for a future fire station. 

N/A 

Prior to plat recordation, the ability to bond 
improvements not yet constructed as described in 
the memorandum from the City Engineer.  

Section 7-8.1, Part A-2(d) allows the City Council to 
waive the requirement that certain minimum 
improvements be provided before a surety bond is 
secured. 

Based on the existing sidewalk network and 
topographic limitations, the applicant is proposing 
sidewalk only on the south side of Senator Ralph 
Scott Parkway. The proposed sidewalk promotes 
connectivity to existing sidewalk on a neighboring 
parcel in the North Carolina Commerce Park and 
limits impacts to streams and wetlands on the 
property proposed for development. 

 

Section 7-6.6 (A) requires sidewalks along frontages 
of all new nonresidential development. Section 7-
6.6 (G) allows City Council to waive this requirement 
for one of the following reasons: the subdivision or 
development due to its design, location, or use 
classification, is not reasonably expected to 
generate a significant amount of pedestrian traffic 
or topographic or natural features make 
construction of a sidewalk impractical. 

Minimum parking requirements calculated at 0.75 
parking spaces per 1,000 s.f. of floor area. As 
indicated on the site plan, the applicant is proposing 
211 spaces with Building 1, 188 spaces with Building 
2, and 119 spaces with Building 3. 

Table 6-5-1 requires parking to be calculated at 2/3 
employees on the largest shift plus 1/200 square 
feet of retail sales or customer service area plus 
1/vehicle used in the operation. As the users of the 
buildings are unknown, staff cannot calculate the 
minimum parking required by the UDO. 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 4 

Perpetual maintenance of a sight distance easement 
area west of Driveway #4 to maintain proper sight 
lines. An easement will be obtained from the 
neighboring property owner. 

Section 7-6.5, Part F (13) requires distance 
easements to remain free of obstructions and allows 
the location and extent of sight distance easements 
to be determined by the City and NCDOT. 

 

VHB Engineering NC, P.C. conducted a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) which has been reviewed by NCDOT and 
City staff. Per findings of the TIA, the developer is required to construct exclusive left and right turn lanes 
at the site accesses onto Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and exclusive right turn lanes at the site accesses 
onto Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. All turn lanes are to have at least 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 
These improvements must be constructed as a condition of NCDOT driveway permit approval.  

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the improvements at his own expense. 

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the LM(CD) zoning as presented.  
 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Industrial Growth Area, which “…supports industrial uses…” 

(Mebane CLP, p. 74); and, 
 

 Serves Growth Management Goal 1.7 through the support [of] industrial development at existing 
industrial parks near I-40/85 (pp.17, 59 & 82) 

 
3. Motion to waive the requirements that certain minimum improvements be provided before a surety 

bond is secured and that sidewalk be provided on all frontages, per justifications presented by City 
staff. 

 
OR 
 
4. Motion to deny the LM(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design. 

Attachments 
1. Preliminary Presentation Slides 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 5 

2. Zoning Amendment Application 
3. Zoning Map 
4. Site Plan 
5. Planning Project Report  
6. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
7. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 
8. Traffic Impact Analysis – click here to review and download. 

a. RKA Review of TIA 
b. NCDOT Review of TIA 

9. Subdivision Plat Memorandum 
  

 

https://cityofmebane.sharefile.com/d-sbea56f62f02041558b9723ba71bbe8e9




Crow Industrial
Conditional Zoning Request



Crow Industrial
Conditional Zoning Request



Crow Industrial
Conditional Zoning Request



Crow Industrial
Conditional Rezoning Request



Crow Industrial
Conditional Zoning Request





NORTH CAROLINA COMMERCE PARK

CHI/ACQUISTIONS, L.P. 
RZ 22-15

City Council – December 5, 2022



CONFIDENTIALMEETING AGENDA
North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina

• Introductions

• Property Location

• Zoning

• Development Diligence Process

• Proposed Plan

• Development Review Considerations

• Example Renderings

• Questions/Discussion



CONFIDENTIALTEAM INTRODUCTIONS

Petitioner: CHI/Acquisitions, L.P.

• George Retschle
• Lee Price
• David Bowers
• Drew Howe
• Matt Pajak• Nick Thornton 

704.754.2792
nthornton@chindustrial.com

• Matt Cochrane 
704.258.9147
mcochrane@chindustrial.com

• Chris Urquhart
• Christina Conkle

North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina

• Nathan Rhomberg
• Jody Lewis

mailto:nthornton@chindustrial.com
mailto:mcochrane@chindustrial.com


CONFIDENTIALPROPERTY LOCATION

North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina

+/-78 acres

JIMMIE KERR 
ROAD

SENATOR 
RALPH SCOTT 

PARKWAY

NC 119



CONFIDENTIALPROPERTY LOCATION

North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina

+/-78 acres



CONFIDENTIAL

Existing Zoning:

Light Manufacturing 
and General Business

ZONING
North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina

B-2

LM

HM

B-2

LM

B-2

Mobile Home 
Park

HM

B-2

Proposed Zoning:

Light Manufacturing 
Conditional District



CONFIDENTIALDEVELOPMENT DILIGENCE PROCESS

North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina

Location
Within North Carolina 

Commerce Park

Zoning
Mix of Light Manufacturing 

and General Business

Key Studies
Traffic Impact Analysis, 

Wetlands, Environmental, 
Topographical Survey, 

Geotechnical



CONFIDENTIALPROPOSED PLAN
North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina

Lot 1 2 3 Total
Use Warehouse

Lot Size (Acres) 32.5 22.1 23.1 77.7

Building Size 279,000 248,000 156,000 683,000



CONFIDENTIALDEVELOPMENT REVIEW CONSIDERATIONS

North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina

Traffic
Traffic designation (LUC 110) more 

intense than anticipate users and 
original designation (LUC 150)

Providing 100’ right turn lanes into all 
driveways

Agreed to acquire easements to ensure 
turn lanes have proper visibility

Environmental
Minimizing impact to stream running 

through the site

Increased plantings/screening on 
Trollingwood Hawfields Road

Community
Dedicating 2.5 AC to the City

Coordinating plans with the City for 
sewer extension at Lot 1



CONFIDENTIALEXAMPLE RENDERINGS
North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina



CONFIDENTIAL

QUESTIONS?

QUESTIONS
North Carolina Commerce Park |Mebane, North Carolina





40

Sen
Ralph

ScottPkwy

152

119

Trollingw
ood

H
aw
fields

R
d

Mills
te
ad

Dr

V
ill
a

St
rig

o1D
r

LowesBlvd

S
N
C
H
ig
h
w
a
y
1
1
9

Hawfields

B-2

LM

R-20

MHP

HM

O&I

B-2 & LM

B-2(CD)

R-8

R-6

NC CGIA, Maxar, Esri Community Maps Contributors, Town of Cary, Alamance County, State of
North Carolina DOT, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph,

GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA

DATE: 11/09/2022

DRAWN BY: AO

CITY OF MEBANE Crow Industrial

ZONING MAP 1 inch = 500 feet



©

07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FWFWFWFW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW FW FW FW FW FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW FW

FW

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

SIG

SI
G

OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
SIG

SIG

OHE

T

T

20' ZONE 2

(TYP.)

30' ZONE 1

(TYP.)

20' ZO
N

E 2
(TYP.)

30' ZO
N

E 1

(TYP.)

OHE
OHE OHE

OHE

OHE

©

07 NOV 22



R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

100-YR

100-YR

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
H

E

O
H

E

SIG

SIG

SIG
SIG

SI
G

20' ZO
NE 2

(TYP.)

30' ZO
N

E 1
(TYP.)

R/WR/WR/WR/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

T

©

TROLLINGWOOD-HAWFIELDS RD. IMPROVEMENTS

07 NOV 22



R/W R/W R/W

R/W R/W R/W

20' ZO
NE 2

(TYP.)
30' ZO

NE 1
(TYP.)

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W R/W

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

©

DRIVEWAY #4 SIGHT DISTANCE

07 NOV 22



FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

O
HE

O
HE

20
' Z

O
N

E 
2

(T
YP

.)

30
' Z

O
N

E 
1

(T
YP

.)

©

07 NOV 22



R/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

OHE

R/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

OHE

R/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

©

DRIVEWAY #2 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT OUTDRIVEWAY #2 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT OUT DRIVEWAY #2 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT INDRIVEWAY #2 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT IN

DRIVEWAY #4 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT IN

DRIVEWAY #3 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT INDRIVEWAY #3 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT OUT DRIVEWAY #3 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT INDRIVEWAY #3 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT OUT

DRIVEWAY #4 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT INDRIVEWAY #4 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT OUTDRIVEWAY #4 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT OUT

07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FWFWFWFW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW FW FW FW FW FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW FW

FW

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

SIG

SI
G

SIG

SIG

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

T

T

SD

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB SB SB SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB SB SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SBSBSB
SB

SB
SB

SBSB

SB

SBSB

SB

SB

SB

SBSBSBSBSBSBSB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB SB SB SB SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB SB SB SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SBSB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SBSB
SBSBSBSBSB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

20' ZONE 2

(TYP.)

30' ZONE 1

(TYP.)

20' ZO
N

E 2
(TYP.)

30' ZO
N

E 1

(TYP.)

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

©

07 NOV 22



R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

SIG

SIG

SIG
SIG

SI
G

SDSD

UNKUNKUNKUNKUNKUNKUNKUNK
UNK

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SBSB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SBSB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB SB
SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

20' ZO
NE 2

(TYP.)

30' ZO
N

E 1
(TYP.)

©

07 NOV 22



R/W R/W

R/W R/W

SD

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

(TYP.)

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

©

07 NOV 22



FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SBSBSB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SBSBSB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

20
' Z

O
N

E 
2

(T
YP

.)

30
' Z

O
N

E 
1

(T
YP

.)

©

07 NOV 22



TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTIONS

NCDOT CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

©

"STOP" SIGN

STOP

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN (N.I.C.)

TYPICAL ACCESSIBLE PARKING LAYOUT SEGMENTAL BLOCK RETAINING
WALL SECTION (DESIGN-BUILD)

TEMPORARY TREE PROTECTION FENCE

07 NOV 22



©

R.T. Peter
Landscape Architecture
Raleigh, North Carolina

919-971-3648 bob.p@rtpla.com

ALTERNATE PLANTING PLAN

R.T. Peter
Landscape Architecture
Raleigh, North Carolina

919-971-3648
bob.p@rtpla,com



©

R.T. Peter
Landscape Architecture
Raleigh, North Carolina

919-971-3648 bob.p@rtpla.com



 

PAGE 1 

PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE 11/09/2022 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 22-15 
PROJECT NAME Crow Industrial  

APPLICANT 
CHI/Acquisitions, L. P.  
4064 Colony Road, Suite 405 
Charlotte, NC 28211 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 2 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 4 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 7 
STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION .................................................................. PAGE 8



 

PAGE 2 

ZONING REPORT 
EXISTING ZONE LM (Light Manufacturing) and B-2 (General Business) 
REQUESTED ACTION LM (CD) (Light Manufacturing Conditional District) 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Vacant, Forested, Farm 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 77.689 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 

Sarah S. Bradley 
917 Arrowhead Ln 
Mebane, NC 27302 
GPINs: 9804810638, 9804720640   

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Request to rezone two properties, GPIN 9804720640 and portion of GPIN 
9804810638, totaling +/- 77.689 acres located at 1447 Trollingwood Hawfields Road 
from LM and B-2 to LM (CD) to allow a light-industrial development including three 
warehouse buildings by CHI/Acquisitions, L.P.  

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 

Adjoining properties to the west are zoned LM (Light Manufacturing), and properties 
to the northwest are zoned HM (Heavy Manufacturing). Across Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road, the adjacent zoning varies, with properties zoned B-2 (General 
Business), LM, R-20 (Residential), and Mobile Home Park. Properties to the southeast 
are zoned R-20. Additionally, the portion of the subject property to the south of 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway is proposed to remain the existing B-2 zoning. 

SITE HISTORY 
The properties have historically been used as farmland and remain taxed as general 
farms. Stream, wetlands, and floodplain are present. 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO  
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO 
POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the LM and HM zoning of surrounding 
properties and the location of the properties in the North Carolina Commerce Park. 



 

PAGE 3 
 



 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE Vacant, Forested, Farm 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning to develop two properties totaling 
+/- 77.689 acres with frontages on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway and 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road (GPINs 9804810638, 9804720640) for a light 
industrial warehouse development of one 279,000-square-foot building, 
one 248,000-square-foot building, and one 156,000-square-foot building. 
The rezoning request is only for the portions of the properties north of 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway.  

PROPOSED ZONING LM (CD) (Light Manufacturing Conditional District) 
PARCEL SIZE +/- 77.689 acres 

AREA LAND USE 

The properties are in the North Carolina Commerce Park. UPS is currently 
developing the adjoining property to the west. A Pilot Travel Center is 
across from the site on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road. Residential uses are 
also across Trollingwood-Hawfields Road, including single-family detached 
homes and a mobile home park. Hawfields Presbyterian Church owns the 
adjoining lots to the south, which include the Hawfields Community Park.  

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

The applicant proposes a 5’ sidewalk on the south side of Senator Ralph 
Scott Parkway. 
 
The applicant proposes to dedicate a lot to the City of Mebane for a future 
fire station and proposes the dedication of right-of-way from Lot 1.  

CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED 
CONDITIONS 

The applicant has provided their own parking calculations. The UDO 
requires parking to be calculated at 2/3 employees on the largest shift plus 
1/200 square feet of retail sales or customer service area plus 1/vehicle 
used in the operation. Based on other projects, the applicant is proposing 
parking at 0.75 parking spaces per 1,000 s.f. of floor area. 
 
The applicant is seeking a waiver from the requirement to provide sidewalk 
along the Trollingwood-Hawfields Road frontage. Given Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway splits the site, the applicant is proposing to provide sidewalk on 
one side of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. Per Section 7-6.6(A), sidewalk 
should be provided along frontages of new nonresidential development 
unless the requirement is waived by the Mebane City Council. 
 
The applicant agrees to a condition requiring perpetual maintenance of the 
sight distance easement area west of proposed Driveway #4 to maintain 
proper sight lines. 
 
The applicant will dedicate a lot to the City for a future fire station.  



 

PAGE 5 

As outlined in the memorandum from the City Engineer, prior to recording 
of the subdivision plat, the applicant is requesting to bond particular 
improvements not yet constructed. The UDO requires certain minimum 
improvements be provided before a surety bond is secured unless the 
requirement is waived by the Mebane City Council. 

  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-1 Industrial 
Conservation Area 

OTHER LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS  

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

GROWTH MANAGEMENT 1.7  
Continue to support industrial development at existing industrial parks near 
I-40/85.   

   

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 6 

 
 
 
  
 



 

PAGE 7 

UTILITIES REPORT 
AVAILABLE UTILITIES YES   NO 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the anticipated 
water and sewer use for the proposed development is 11,200 
gallons per day. Building 1 is proposed with a 12-inch water 
main extension along Trollingwood-Hawfields Road from a tap 
to an existing 16-inch water line in Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. 
Buildings 2 and 3 will be served from the existing 16-inch water 
line. Building 1 is proposed to be served with an 8-inch private 
sewer extension connecting to a proposed 12-inch public sewer 
line installed as a part of the City of Mebane GKN Pump Station 
flow reroute project to Graham. Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed 
to be served through an 8-inch public sewer extension 
connecting to Mebane’s 15-inch sanitary sewer outfall. 

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY APPLICANT Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities, as 
described in AWCK’s Technical Memo. 

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO ABSORB 
PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the 
domestic and fire flow demands of the project.  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE LONG 
RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 
 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The subject property is situated south of Interstate 40, west of 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road, and north of Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway. The site plan features two proposed driveway 
entrances to Building 1 from Trollingwood-Hawfields Road. The 
site also will include two entrances from Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway. These entrances will provide access to Buildings 2 and 
3..  
 
NCDOT provides traffic count data for Trollingwood-Hawfields 
Road, which is currently a two-lane undivided road. In 2019, the 
section east of the site had an average daily traffic volume of 
10,000 trips. NCDOT does not provide any data for Senator 
Ralph Scott Parkway. The Interstate 40 ramps west of 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road registered 5,500-5,700 trips, while 
the eastern exit ramps each registered 3,600 trips. 
 



 

PAGE 8 

North of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway, Trollingwood-Hawfields 
Road registers a low Safety Score of 78. The section of 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road that extends from the intersection 
with Senator Ralph Scott Parkway to the south registers a 
moderate safety score of 33.  

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The TIA requires exclusive left and right turn lanes at the two 
driveway entrances on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and 
exclusive right turn lanes at the two driveways on Senator Ralph 
Scott Parkway. The second driveway on Trollingwood-Hawfields 
Road is proposed to align with the future extension of Lowes 
Boulevard. Additionally, the applicant will be required to 
maintain adequate sight lines at the westernmost driveway on 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. This requires obtaining an 
easement from the adjoining property owner. 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE MEBANE 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN? 

 
YES   NO 
 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant proposes to construct a sidewalk for the length of 
the property on the south side of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE 
BY DESIGN 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Crow Industrial” is consistent with 
the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. Specifically, it is located 
in an industrial growth strategy area and serves Goal 1.7.  The site 
is part of the North Carolina Commerce Park and the proposed 
project is in harmony with nearby light and heavy industrial uses.   

 



CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 

Technical Memorandum 
 

Date: November 8, 2022 
 
To: Ashley Ownbey - Development Director 
 
From: Franz K. Holt, P.E - City Engineer 
 
Subject:  Crow Industrial at the NC Commerce Park (NCCP) – City Engineering review 

 
Preliminary Site Plans for Crow Industrial at the NCCP dated November 7th, 2022, and prepared by George 
Retschle, P.E. with Ballentine Associates, PA of Chapel Hill, NC, have been reviewed by the Engineering 
Department as a part of the TRC process. Our technical memo comments are as follows: 

 
A. General 

• Crow Industrial proposed to locate three (3) industrial buildings on a 77.7 acres site located 
within the NCCP and fronting along Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway.  Proposed Building 1/Lot 1 – 279,000 on 32.5 acres fronting on Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road with two private driveway connections and Building 2/Lot 2 – 248,000 square 
feet on 22.1 acres fronting on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway with two private driveway 
connections with one being shared with Building 3/Lot 3 - 156,000 square feet on 23.1 acres.  

• Stormwater management controls will be required to treat and detain the stormwater runoff 
from the proposed built upon surfaces meeting Mebane Phase II stormwater requirements for 
post-construction runoff. 

• A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) has been completed for the site and reviewed by NCDOT and 
City with certain roadway improvements being identified to Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway.  NCDOT review and approval will be required for utility 
encroachments, sidewalk improvements, the three proposed roadway connections, and roadway 
improvements associated with required turn lanes identified as a part of the TIA. 

• Sidewalk is planned to be constructed with the proposed future development along Senator 
Ralph Scott Parkway (south side of roadway).  

• The project proposes to dedicate a lot to the City of Mebane for a future fire station site 
located at the southwest quadrant of the Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and Sen. Ralph Scott 
Parkway.   
 

B. Availability of City Water and Sewer 
In accordance with the UDO, this memo is provided to indicate that I have reviewed the preliminary 
water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meets City standards based on the 
following: 
 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

1. Water system –  

• Building 1 is proposed to be served with a 12-inch public water main extension along 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road from a tap to Mebane’s 16-inch water main at Senator 
Ralph Scott Parkway.  This 12-inch line will eventually be looped back to Lowes Blvd. with 
future development and may be considered for oversizing reimbursement per city policy. 

• Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed to connect directly to Mebane’s 16-inch water main in 
Sen. Ralph Scott Parkway with a 12-inch shared tap with separate services from a header 
pipe. 

• Anticipated water use for warehouse distribution is 100 gal/bay x 112 bays = 11,200 
gallons per day. 

• The City has adequate water capacity at the Graham-Mebane Water Plant to provide 
domestic water use and fire flows for the proposed development. 

• Upon completion of public water main improvements, to City of Mebane requirements, 
they will become a part of Mebane’s water distribution system for ownership and 
maintenance. 
 

2. Sanitary Sewer system –  

• Building 1 is proposed to be served with an 8-inch private sewer extension connecting to 
a proposed 12-inch public sewer line installed as a part of the City of Mebane GKN Pump 
Station flow reroute project to Graham.  

• Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed to be served through an 8-inch public sewer extension 
connecting to Mebane’s 15-inch sanitary sewer outfall.   

• Anticipated wastewater use for warehouse distribution is 100 gal/bay x 112 bays = 
11,200 gallons per day.   

• The City has adequate wastewater capacity available in the downstream Mebane 15-inch 
sanitary sewer outfall, Graham’s 18-inch sanitary sewer outfall, Graham’s Cherry Lane 
Pump Station, and at the Graham Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This wastewater flow 
does not account against Mebane’s 0.75 MGD purchased wastewater capacity 
agreement.  

• Upon completion of public sewer main improvements, to City of Mebane requirements, 
they will become a part of Mebane’s sewer collection system for ownership and 
maintenance. 

 
C. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance, Watershed Overlay District, and Falls Lake 

Watershed Stormwater Regulations 
 

1. Watershed Overlay District requirements are provided under Sec. 5.4 of the UDO. 
These requirements in the UDO are for the Back-Creek Watershed, which includes the 
Graham-Mebane Lake.  These requirements do not apply as the project drains to Back Creek 
below the Graham-Mebane Lake dam with no restrictions on built upon area. 

 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance 
Sec. 5.3 in the UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and 5.4.F requires 
compliance with the Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance (which is a stand-alone 
ordinance titled the Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance (SPCO)). The standards 
in the UDO are general standards as the Ordinance itself provides detailed standards. The SPCO 
does apply to this project as it will disturb more than one acre of land and it is estimated that 
the new built upon will be more than 24% of the site.  The project proposes to construct three 
privately maintained stormwater management control devices meeting the City’s 
requirements for stormwater treatment and detention.  Fencing is required with water pooling 
at 2 feet and above. 

 

D. Storm Drainage System 
 

Sec. 5-2. D. in the UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The preliminary site 
plans include a preliminary layout of storm drainage swales, piping, and inlets that collect 
stormwater runoff that is directed to stormwater management control devices where treatment 
and detention occurs before being discharged off-site. 

 
E. Street Access and TIA 

 

The industrial development proposes two private driveway connections to Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road (SR 1981) and two private driveway connections to Senator Ralph Scott Parkway 
(SR 2657).  The TIA completed for the project provides for certain improvements to be installed at 
each driveway connection which has been reviewed by the City’s Transportation Engineer (VHB) 
and NCDOT. NCDOT driveway permits, and encroachment agreements will be required for all 
related improvements inside NCDOT right-of-way.  Findings and Requirements of the developer 
are as follows: 
 
Driveway 1 at SR 1981 

• Construct exclusive right turn lane with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• Construct exclusive left turn lane with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• One ingress and one egress lane under stop condition with 100’ of protected stem length. 
 

Driveway 2 at SR 1981 

• Construct exclusive right turn lane with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• Construct exclusive left turn lane with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• One ingress and two egress lanes under stop condition with 100’ of protected stem length aligning with 
future Lowes Blvd Extension. 

 
Driveways 3 and 4 at SR 2657: 

• Construct exclusive right turn lanes with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• One ingress and one egress lane under stop condition with 100’ of protected stem length. 

• Provide sight distance as required for driveway 4. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 
F. Construction Plan Submittal 

 

The UDO indicates that construction plans for all street facilities, including water and sewer 
facilities, shall be submitted following preliminary plat or site plan approval; therefore, 
construction plans are not required as a part of the site plan review. A utility plan is provided which 
generally shows the proposed water lines, sewer lines, and storm drainage and stormwater 
management devices to indicate that the project is feasible for utility service and providing 
stormwater management. Appendix E, which is included in the UDO, is a Construction Document 
checklist which is to be provided at such time as construction plans are submitted after Preliminary 
Site Plan approval. Based on city engineering review of the referenced preliminary site plans, it is 
my opinion that said plans are in substantial compliance with the UDO. 

 
G. Final Plat Recording 

 
An early final plat recording is being sought by the developer allowing for building permits to be 
pulled for any or all 3 buildings prior to the installation of certain improvements.   The city will 
accept security deposited with the city in the amount of 125% of the estimated and approved cost 
to guarantee their completion.  These improvements include turn lanes to be bonded with NCDOT, 
sidewalk and related curb and gutter installation along the south side of Sen. Ralph Scott Parkway, 
public sewer to the fire station site, public sewer to buildings 2 and 3, public water to building 1, 
streetscape improvements, and permanent stormwater management devices.  This allowance is 
granted through a developer requested waiver with the approval of the Mebane City Council. Prior 
to final certificate of occupancy for any or all buildings associated improvements must be 
completed with the exception of streetscape (weather sensitive) and stormwater management 
devices being converted to their permanent condition (permanent stabilization dependent). These 
improvements will be allowed to be bonded 2 years past final CO and may further be extended with 
staff approval. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


 
 

November 8, 2022 
 

George Retschle, PE 
Ballentine Associates, PA 
221 Providence Road 

Chapel Hill, NC 27514 
 

Subject: Crow Industrial at NCCP – Water and Sewer System 
 

Regarding the subject Preliminary Site Plan and in accordance with the UDO, this letter is provided to indicate that I have 
reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meets City standards based on the 
following: 

 
1. Water system –  

• Building 1 is proposed to be served with a 12-inch public water main extension along Trollingwood-Hawfields Road from a 
tap to Mebane’s 16-inch water main at Senator Ralph Scott Parkway.  This 12-inch line will eventually be looped back to 
Lowes Blvd. with future development and may be considered for oversizing reimbursement per city policy. 

• Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed to connect directly to Mebane’s 16-inch water main in Sen. Ralph Scott Parkway with a 12-
inch shared tap with separate services from a header pipe. 

• Anticipated water use for warehouse distribution is 100 gal/bay x 112 bays = 11,200 gallons per day. 

• The City has adequate water capacity at the Graham-Mebane Water Plant to provide domestic water use and fire flows 
for the proposed development. 

• Upon completion of public water main improvements, to City of Mebane requirements, they will become a part of 
Mebane’s water distribution system for ownership and maintenance. 
 

2. Sanitary Sewer system –  

• Building 1 is proposed to be served with an 8-inch private sewer extension connecting to a proposed 12-inch public sewer 
line installed as a part of the City of Mebane GKN Pump Station flow reroute project to Graham.  

• Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed to be served through an 8-inch public sewer extension connecting to Mebane’s 15-inch 
sanitary sewer outfall.   

• Anticipated wastewater use for warehouse distribution is 100 gal/bay x 112 bays = 11,200 gallons per day.   

• The City has adequate wastewater capacity available in the downstream Mebane 15-inch sanitary sewer outfall, Graham’s 
18-inch sanitary sewer outfall, Graham’s Cherry Lane Pump Station, and at the Graham Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This 
wastewater flow does not count against Mebane’s 0.75 MGD purchased wastewater capacity agreement.  

• Upon completion of public sewer main improvements, to City of Mebane requirements, they will become a part of 
Mebane’s sewer collection system for ownership and maintenance. 

 
If there are any questions, please let me know.  
 
Sincerely, 

 

Franz K. Holt, P.E.  City Engineer  
 
CC:   

Ashley Ownbey - Development Director and Kyle Smith, P.E. – Utilities Director 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street  |  Mebane, NC 27302  919 563 5901  fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www/


 

 

 
 

October 7, 2022 

 

TO:   Ashley Ownbey 
Interim Development Director 
E: aownbey@cityofmebane.com 

 
FROM:  Craig J. Hyman, PE 
  Ramey Kemp Associates 
  E: chyman@rameykemp.com 
 

SUBJECT: Crow Industrial TIA Review Comments 
 
Ms. Ownbey: 
 
Ramey Kemp Associates (RKA) has reviewed the subject TIA and issues the following comments. 
 
Study Summary 
 
The proposed site is a light industrial development located west of Trollingwood Hawfields Road, north of 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway, and south of I-40/85 in Mebane, North Carolina. It consists of 683,000 square 
feet of warehouse space and will have access via two full movement driveways on Trollingwood Hawfields 
Road and two full movement driveways on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. The northern most driveway on 
Trollingwood Hawfields Road will be restricted to passenger vehicles only (no trucks). The development is 
expected to be constructed by 2024.  
 
The development is anticipated to generate approximately 2,619 daily trips during a typical weekday - with 
468 trips occurring during the morning (AM) peak hour and 161 trips occurring during the afternoon (PM) 
peak hour. Analysis was performed for three (3) scenarios: 2022 Existing Conditions, 2024 Future No Build 
Conditions, and 2024 Future Build Conditions. NCDOT TIP project U-6013 will provide improvements at the 
intersection of NC 119 and Trollingwood Hawfields Road and is expected to be complete by 2024.  
 
The study area intersections are anticipated to operate at acceptable levels of service with the following 
exceptions: 
 

• NC 119 at Trollingwood Hawfields Rd / Old Hillsborough Rd: the intersection is expected to operate 
at an overall LOS E (AM) and D (PM) under no build and build conditions, with several approaches 
operating at LOS E or F, after the implementation of U-6013. However, the opportunity for additional 
improvements at this intersection is limited due to right-of-way and historic property constraints. 
 

• Trollingwood Hawfields Rd at Future Access #1: the eastbound (Future Access #1) approach is 
anticipated to operate at LOS F during the AM and PM peak hours. This is not uncommon for an 
unsignalized minor approach at a major roadway with a high through volume. 
 

mailto:aownbey@cityofmebane.com


 Crow Industrial TIA Review   |   Page 2 of 2 

 

  

• Trollingwood Hawfields Rd at Future Access #2: Future Access #2 is anticipated to operate at LOS E 
during the AM peak hour. This is not uncommon for an unsignalized minor approach at a major 
roadway with a high through volume. 

 
The recommended improvements identified in the TIA are reasonable. Based on NCDOT warrants, right-turn 
lanes are warranted at both site driveways on Trollingwood Hawfields Road. The City should coordinate with 
the NCDOT District office to determine if these turn lanes should be required as part of the developer 
improvements. 
 
The following comments relate to deviations from various NCDOT and/or City analysis guidelines. A revised 
TIA based on these comments is not requested. However, final required improvements may need to be noted, 
pending NCDOT turn lane requirements. 
 

TIA Report  

1. Level of service and delay are not reported for the westbound approach of Trollingwood Hawfields Rd 
at Sen. Ralph Scott Pkwy / Villa Strigo Dr. 

2. Figure 8 – the entering and exiting site trips during the PM peak hour are each missing one trip when 
compared to the trip generation. However, this difference is not expected to significantly impact the 
analysis results. 

3. Based on NCDOT’s turn lane warrants, the following improvements are warranted: 

o A southbound right-turn lane with a minimum of 75 feet of full width storage plus appropriate 
taper is warranted along Trollingwood Hawfields Rd at Future Access #1. (AM right-turn 
volume: 62, opposing volume: 788) 

o A southbound right-turn lane with a minimum 50 feet of full width storage plus appropriate 
taper is warranted along Trollingwood Hawfields Rd at Future Access #2. (AM right-turn 
volume: 41, opposing volume: 755) 

Based on traffic volumes, proximity to adjacent intersections and potential for increased truck volumes 
at Future Access #2, right-turn lanes should be considered at Future Access #1 and Future Access #2. 
Since Trollingwood Hawfields Rd is a NCDOT roadway, the City should coordinate with the NCDOT 
District Office to determine if right-turn lanes will be required at these driveways. 
  

 
Synchro Analysis 

1. In future submittals, consider anchoring the aerial image to the synchro network. 

2. In future submittals, consider balancing volumes between intersections that do not have a sink/source 
(such as the bridge over I-85). The imbalances in the analysis are not expected to significantly impact 
the analysis results. 









 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

Memo: 

Date: November 29, 2022 

To: Ashley Ownbey, Development Director  

From: Franz Holt, City Engineer 

Re: Crow Holdings Industrial at NCCP – Final Subdivision Plat recording 

Crow Holdings Industrial (Crow) has requested an early recording of a final subdivision plat to allow for 
the creation of individual lots with secured improvements not yet constructed requiring Council approval.  
This approval would allow Crow to construct three (3) large industrial buildings in conjunction with 
required site improvements being installed. Additionally, Crow would be able to transfer the proposed 
fire station no. 5 lot to the City of Mebane (when requested). 

Reasons to consider the waiver are as follows: 

• The guarantee of emergency access by the developer meeting Fire Department’s requirements. 
• Simultaneous construction of public improvements with individual site improvements. 
• Crow is not selling the industrial lots but retaining them to build on. 
• Public water and sewer are currently on-site not requiring off-site extension. 
• Roadway improvements to Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and Senator Ralph Scott Parkway will be 

bonded with NCDOT with the issuance of driveway permits.  

Furthermore, the city will accept security deposited with the city in the amount of 125% of the estimated 
and approved cost to guarantee their completion. These improvements include turn lanes to be bonded 
with NCDOT, sidewalk and related curb and gutter installation along the south side of Sen. Ralph Scott 
Parkway, public sewer to the fire station site, public sewer to buildings 2 and 3, public water to building 
1, streetscape improvements, and permanent stormwater management devices.  

Prior to a final certificate of occupancy being issued for any building, the above improvements must be 
completed except for streetscape (weather sensitive) and stormwater management devices being 
converted to their permanent condition (permanent stabilization dependent). These improvements may 
be bonded 2 years past final CO and extended further with staff approval, if needed. 

  



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #6C 
RZ 22-012 
Rezoning –304 E Washington St 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director  

Applicant 
TRG Capital, LLC 
304 E Washington St 
Mebane, NC 27302 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
304 E Washington 
St GPIN  
9825231392 

Proposed Zoning 
O&I 

Current Zoning 
HM 

Size 
 +/- 0.74 acres 

Surrounding 
Zoning 
R-12, HM, LM,     
B-2, B-1 

Adjacent Land 
Uses 
Single-Family 
Residential, 
Commercial, 
Vacant 

Utilities 
Water and sewer 
present 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
City Limits 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
TRG Capital, LLC is requesting to rezone the +/- 32,234.4 s.f. property addressed 304 E. Washington St. 
(Alamance County GPIN 9825231392), from HM, Heavy Manufacturing, to O&I, Office and Institutional.  

The property is developed with one structure currently being used as an office building. The existing 
“General Office” use is not permitted in the HM Zoning District and is considered nonconforming. 
Rezoning the property will bring the current use into conformity and enable the applicant to expand the 
use. The property meets the minimum lot area and lot width and can accommodate the minimum 
setbacks required for the O&I Zoning District. 

The surrounding zoning in the area includes HM, R-12, B-2, and LM. Several of the adjoining HM lots are 
occupied by the Mebane Home Telephone Company. The remaining HM lots are owned by the applicant 
and are proposed to be rezoned. Surrounding land uses include single-family residential, self-storage, and 
vacant land. A variety of business uses are present across the railroad right-of-way. 

The subject property is located in the G-1 Mixed Use Growth Strategy Area for the Downtown area. The 
proposed rezoning is consistent with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The proposed rezoning will be of a lesser intensity compared to 
the existing zoning and bring the current use of the property into conformance with the Unified 
Development Ordinance.  

A project report has not been provided for this general rezoning request due to the simplicity of the 
request and lack of site details. 

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

Recommendation 
The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the O&I rezoning as presented.  

 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a small business use in 

the Downtown District (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.1 
(p. 17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses. 

 
OR 
 

 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

3. Motion to deny the O&I rezoning as presented due to a lack of 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning.  

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design or any of the City’s other adopted plans. 

Attachments 
1. Preliminary Presentation Slides 
2. Zoning Amendment Application 
3. Zoning Map 
4. Future Growth Area Map 
 
 
 





304 E Washington St
General Rezoning Request





304 E Washington
General Rezoning Request







Alamance County GIS
Alamance County Tax Department
Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan,
Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand),
NGCC, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

Address Points
Address

Tax Address

Preliminary Address

Heavy Industrial Development Applicants

APPLIED FOR PERMIT

PERMIT APPROVED

PERMIT RENEW ED

UNDER CONSTRUCTION

Streets
Roads

Preliminary Ro ads

Private Roads

390 - TRAIL

391 - TRAIL

392 - TRAIL

393 - TRAIL

394 - TRAIL

395 - TRAIL

Railroads

County Line

October 24, 2022

 
 Owner Name: TRG CAPITAL LLC

 

216-855-46
9825231392
MEBANE, NC 27302
304 E WASHINGTON ST

GPIN:
PID:

DISCLA IM ER:
The datasets  and maps  availab le  are not survey gr ade or a  legal
 doc um ent.  They are a best approx imation of what is on the
 ground, but do c ontain er rors .  The data comes fr om various
 sources nationally, the s ta te of Nor th  Caro lina, and here in
 Alam ance County.  Alam ance County  wi ll not be he ld res ponsible
 for the m isuse, misrepr esentation, or misinter pretation of the data or
 m aps.  These maps and data are a s erv ice provided for the benefit
 for Alam ance County citiz ens.  We constantly strive to  improve the
 quali ty and expand the am ount of data and maps avai lable.

ALA MANCE COUNTY  s hall assume no l iabi li ty  for any er rors ,
 omissions, or inac cur acies in the in form ation provided regar dless  of
 how caused; or any decis ion made or  action taken or not taken by
 user in  re liance upon any in form ation or data furn is hed hereunder.
 The user knowingly waives any and a ll  c la ims  for damages agains t
 any  and al l o f the entities comprising the Alam ance County GIS
 S ystem  that may ar ise from the mapping data. Date: 10/24/2022

0 0.009 0.018 mi
1:756

µ



1 inch = 155 feet

E CLAY ST

E CENTER ST

E WASHINGTON ST

S 
EI

G
H

TH
 S

TOAKWOOD ST

N
 N

IN
T

H
 S

T

C
IR

C
L

E
 D

R

S S
EVENTH

 S
T

FOREST ST

B-2(CD)

B-2

B-1

B-2

B-2
R-12

R-12

R-12

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
304 E Washington St

ZONING MAP

R-20 | Residential

R-15 | Residential

R-12 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-12 | Residential

R-10 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-10 | Residential

R-8 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-8 | Residential

R-6 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-6 | Residential

MHP

O&I (CD) | Office & Institutional Conditional

O&I | Office & Institutional

LM (CD) | Light Manufacturing Conditional

LM | Light Manufacturing

HM (CD) | Heavy Manufacturing Conditional

HM | Heavy Manufacturing

B-3 | Neighborhood Business

B-2 & HM | Gen. Business & Heavy Manufacturing

B-2 (CD) | General Business Conditional

B-2 | General Business

B-1 (CD) | Central Business Conditional

B-1 | Central Business

City of Mebane Zoning

City Limits

ETJ

Alamance Parcels

Subject Property

HM

LM

R-12



S 
SE

VE
NT

H 
ST

E JACKSON ST

CI
RC

LE
 D

R

S 
EI

GH
TH

 S
T

E OAKWOOD ST

N
 S

EV
EN

TH
 S

T

CIR
CLE D

R

E FOREST ST

E CLAY ST

E WASHINGTON ST

E CENTER STG-1
Downtown
Mixed-Use

Secondary

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

1 inch = 175 feet

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
304 E Washington StFuture Growth Area Map

Subject Property



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #6D 
RZ 22-013 
Rezoning – Oakwood St Parcel ID 168644 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director  

Applicant 
TRG Capital, LLC 
304 E. Washington St. 
Mebane, NC 27302 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
PIN 982523121 

Proposed Zoning 
R-12 

Current Zoning 
HM and R-12 

Size 
 +/- 15,681  

Surrounding Zoning 
R-12, HM, LM, B-2, B-1 

Adjacent Land Uses 
Single-Family 
Residential, 
Commercial, Vacant 

Utilities 
Sewer available, water 
requires extension 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
City Limits 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
TRG Capital, LLC is requesting to rezone the +/- 15,681 s.f. unaddressed property with frontage on 
Oakwood Street (Alamance County GPIN 982523121), from HM and R-12 to R-12. 

The property is currently vacant and located within the Mebane City Limits. The purpose of the R-12 zoning 
request is to eliminate the HM split zoning on the property. The lot meets the minimum lot area and lot 
width and can accommodate the minimum setbacks required for the R-12 Zoning District. Sewer is available 
in the area. Water will require an extension or easements to serve the property. The applicant will be 
required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

The surrounding zoning in the area includes HM, R-12, B-2, and LM. Several of the adjoining HM lots are 
occupied by the Mebane Home Telephone Company. The remaining HM lots are owned by the applicant 
and are proposed to be rezoned. Surrounding land uses include single-family residential, self-storage, and 
vacant land.  

The subject property is located in the G-1 Mixed Use Growth Strategy Area for the Downtown area. The 
proposed rezoning is consistent with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the City’s 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The proposed rezoning will be a continuance of the R-12 zoning 
to the south and the east of the property and eliminate the range of incompatible uses allowed by the 
existing HM zoning. 

A project report has not been provided for this general rezoning request due to the simplicity of the 
request and lack of site details. 

Financial Impact 
The applicant will be required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

Recommendation 
The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-12 rezoning as presented.  

 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a residential use in the 

Downtown District (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.1 (p. 
17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses. 

OR 
 
3. Motion to deny the R-12 rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning.  



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design or any of the City’s other adopted plans. 

Attachments 
1. Preliminary Presentation Slides 
2. Zoning Amendment Application 
3. Zoning Map 
4. Future Growth Area Map 
 
 
 





Oakwood St Parcels 168644 & 168648
General Rezoning Request



Oakwood St Parcels 168644 & 168648
General Rezoning Request



Oakwood St Parcels 168644 & 168648
General Rezoning Request





APPLICATION  FOR AZONING  AMENDMENT

Application  is hereby  made  for  an amendment  to the  Mebane  Zoning  Ordinance  as follows:

Name  of  Applicant:  TRG Capitali LLC

Address  of  Applicant:  304 East Washington Street, Mebane NC 27302

Address  and brief  description  of  property  to be rezoned:  Oa"ood  S'ee'  (no address)

GPIN  9825231212,  Parcel  ID 168644

Applicant"s  interest  in property:  (Owned,  leased  or  otherwise)  Parce' OWner

*Do you have any conflicts of interest with: Elected/Appointed  Officials, Staff, etc.?

Yes  Explain: No x

Type  of  re-zoning  requested:  R-12 Res'denk'a'

Sketch  attached:  Yes No x

Reason  forthe  requested  re-zoninz:  To make parcel more consistent with other

Oakwood  parcels  and  unify  the  parcel  to a single  zone.

Signed:

Date:  10/25/2

Action  by Planning  Board:

Public  Hearing  Date: Action:

Zoning  Map  Corrected:

The following  items  should  be included  with  the  application  for  rezoning  when  it is returned:

1.  Tax Map  showing  the  area  that  is to be considered  for  rezoning.

2. Names  and addresses  of  all adjoining  property  owners  within  a 300" radius  (Include  those  that

are across  the  street).

3. 5300.00  Fee to cover  administrative  costs.

4.  The information  is due  15  working  days prior  to the  Planning  Board  meeting.  The Planning

Board  meets  the  2'd Monday  of  each month  at 6:30  p.m. Then  the  request  goes  to the  City

Council  for  a Public  Hearing  the  following  month.  The City  Council  meets  the  1"'  Monday  of  each

month  at 6:00  p.m.



03

8

503

('l

Owner Name: TRG  CAPITAL  LLC

304 E WASHINGTON  ST

MEBANE,  NC 27302
GPIN:  9825231212

PID: 216-855-50

ldd'S8POin"  @ PERMITAPPROVED

'  Add'aSS @ PERMITRENEWED@ Tax Address
. . f'%i UNDER  CONSTRUCTION

@ Prelimmary Address  %"

leavy  Industrial  DevelopmentApplicants  sfrea-

@ APPLIED FOR PERMIT
Preliminay  Roads

Roads

October  24, 2022

1 :600

0 0.007 0.014 mi
I I I

Private  Roads 395  -TRAIL

391 -TRAIL

390  -TRAIL -4-  Railroads

01 SC 1.A IM ER

Th e d ata as b a nd ma (s  a va }a ble a ie n o t au ive y g  ad e o y e Is ga I
dtcument  They  are a best appiximalion  olwhat  ii  on the
gro  un (l bul *  c onlm n et tam The *ts  co mes fam  va n ous
sources  naional7,  The sJe  ofNtrlh  Caiolina,  snd here  in

394 - T RAI L userm  rellance  U.i*  an-y- i-n'*i'im- glio-n OT :;i4  iui;is  ;Th  ;er;'unffi';

a ny a n d al I o l Ih e an lilie  s w  m p nii ng the Al am an ce C o fin ly G



1 inch = 155 feet

E CLAY ST

E CENTER ST

E WASHINGTON ST

S 
EI

G
H

TH
 S

TOAKWOOD ST

N
 N

IN
T

H
 S

T

C
IR

C
L

E
 D

R

S S
EVENTH

 S
T

FOREST ST

B-2(CD)

B-2

B-1

B-2

B-2
R-12

R-12

R-12

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
Parcel ID 168644

ZONING MAP

R-20 | Residential

R-15 | Residential

R-12 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-12 | Residential

R-10 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-10 | Residential

R-8 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-8 | Residential

R-6 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-6 | Residential

MHP

O&I (CD) | Office & Institutional Conditional

O&I | Office & Institutional

LM (CD) | Light Manufacturing Conditional

LM | Light Manufacturing

HM (CD) | Heavy Manufacturing Conditional

HM | Heavy Manufacturing

B-3 | Neighborhood Business

B-2 & HM | Gen. Business & Heavy Manufacturing

B-2 (CD) | General Business Conditional

B-2 | General Business

B-1 (CD) | Central Business Conditional

B-1 | Central Business

City of Mebane Zoning

City Limits

ETJ

Alamance Parcels

 Subject Property

HM

LM

R-12



S 
SE

VE
NT

H 
ST

E JACKSON ST

CI
RC

LE
 D

R

S 
EI

GH
TH

 S
T

E OAKWOOD ST

N
 S

EV
EN

TH
 S

T

CIR
CLE D

R

E FOREST ST

E CLAY ST

E WASHINGTON ST

E CENTER STG-1
Downtown
Mixed-Use

Secondary

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

1 inch = 175 feet

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
304 E Washington StFuture Growth Area Map

 Subject Property



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #6E 
RZ 22-013 
Rezoning – Oakwood St Parcel ID 168648 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director  

Applicant 
TRG Capital, LLC 
304 E. Washington St. 
Mebane, NC 27302 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
PIN 9825232048 

Proposed Zoning 
R-12 

Current Zoning 
HM and R-12 

Size 
 +/- 12,632 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-12, HM, LM, B-2, B-1 

Adjacent Land Uses 
Single-Family 
Residential, 
Commercial, Vacant 

Utilities 
Sewer available, water 
requires extension 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
City Limits 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
TRG Capital, LLC is requesting to rezone the +/- 12,632 s.f. unaddressed property with frontage on 
Oakwood Street (Alamance County GPIN 9825232048), from HM and R-12 to R-12. 

The property is currently vacant and located within the Mebane City Limits. The purpose of the R-12 zoning 
request is to eliminate the HM split zoning on the property. The lot meets the minimum lot area and lot 
width and can accommodate the minimum setbacks required for the R-12 Zoning District. Sewer is available 
in the area. Water will require an extension or easements to serve the property. The applicant will be 
required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

The surrounding zoning in the area includes HM, R-12, B-2, and LM. Several of the adjoining HM lots are 
occupied by the Mebane Home Telephone Company. The remaining HM lots are owned by the applicant 
and are proposed to be rezoned. Surrounding land uses include single-family residential, office, self-
storage, and vacant land.  

The subject property is located in the G-1 Mixed Use Growth Strategy Area for the Downtown area. The 
proposed rezoning is consistent with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the City’s 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The proposed rezoning will be a continuance of the R-12 zoning 
to the south and the east of the property and eliminate the range of incompatible uses allowed by the 
existing HM zoning. 

A project report has not been provided for this general rezoning request due to the simplicity of the 
request and lack of site details. 

Financial Impact 
The applicant will be required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

Recommendation 
The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-12 rezoning as presented.  

 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a residential use in the 

Downtown Districts (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.1 (p. 
17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses. 
 

OR 
 

3. Motion to deny the R-12 rezoning as presented due to a lack of 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning.  
OR 

b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 
Plan Mebane By Design or any of the City’s other adopted plans. 

Attachments 
1. Preliminary Presentation Slides 
2. Zoning Amendment Application 
3. Zoning Map 
4. Future Growth Area Map 
 
 
 





Oakwood St Parcels 168644 & 168648
General Rezoning Request



Oakwood St Parcels 168644 & 168648
General Rezoning Request



Oakwood St Parcels 168644 & 168648
General Rezoning Request





APPLICATION  FOR AZONING  AMENDMENT

Application  is hereby  made  for  an amendment  to  the  Mebane  Zoning  Ordinance  as follows:

Name  of  Applicant:  TRG Camla'- L'C

Address  of  Applicant:  304 East Washington Street, Mebane NC 27302

Address  and  brief  description  of  property  to be rezoned:  Oa"ood  S'ee' (no address)

GPIN  9825232048,  Parcel  ID 168648

Applicant's  interest  in property:  (Owned,  leased  or  otherwise)  Parce' OWner

*Do you have any conflicts  ofinterest  with:  Elected/Appointed  Officials, Staff, etc.?

Yes  Explain: No x

Type  of  re-zoning  requested:  R-12 Res'den"a'

Sketch  attached:  Yes No x

BeasonlorlHerequesleBrezon;nz:TOmakeparCelmOreCOnSjSieniWjih0iher

Oakwood parcels and unify the paSrlgcneeldto?7e /
Date:  10/25/2022

Action  by Planning  Board:

Public  Hearing  Date: Action:

Zoning  Map  Corrected:

The  following  items  should  be included  with  the  application  for  rezoning  when  it is returned:

1.  Tax  Map  showing  the  area  that  is to be considered  for  rezoning.

2. Names  and  addresses  of  all adjoining  property  owners  within  a 300'  radius  (Include  those  that

are  across  the  street).

3.  §300.00  Fee to  cover  administrative  costs.

4.  The  information  is due  15  working  days  prior  to  the  Planning  Board  meeting.  The  Planning

Board  meets  the  2"d Monday  of  each  month  at 6:30  p.m.  Then  the  request  goes  to  the  City

Council  for  a Public  Hearing  the  following  month.  The  City  Council  meets  the  1"  Monday  of  each

month  at 6:00  p.m.



4

4

11

Owner  Name: TRG  CAPITAL  LLC

304 E WASHINGTON  ST

MEBANE,  NC  27302
GPIN:  9825232048

PID: 216-855-56

Add'ass a  PERMITRENEWED

Tax  Address

leavy  Industrial  DevelopmentApplicants  sfrae

@ APPLIED FOR PERMIT
Roads

Preliminay  Roads

October  24, 2022

1:600

0 0.007  0.014  mi

I I I

Private  Roads 395  -TRAIL

391  -TRAIL

Th e d ataseli  and ma  ps ava  Oa ble  aie  n of  su ivey  g  gde  o t a leg  I

39  0  T  R  A  Il  4  8B  j 17@ B d S dy  um ent They ate B ba.t appiar imalion of what s on the
gio  un d. hit  do  c ontain  ei  ioni  Tha  dta  comes  *om  va  n ou B

so  u ices  na I on ally, Th e s !ite  oT N orlh Ca  iolin  a, a nd he  re i ii

fo  r ei e m iiuse,  misie  piese  ntaiio  n, (IT misi ntei Iretatio  n oTth e d da

393 -TRAki  Japan, METI, Esn China (HAeq),o(JWKmbs4smo(mlwdipyeriois.

394   T  RAIL  user in reliance upon any inb+maiion  or bta  luimtmd  heieundei
Ths user knovnng7  waives  any  and  all claima  TOT damages agai's
any  a n d all of  the  entities  an mpmi  ng Ihe  Al sm an ce C 0 unty  GIS



1 inch = 155 feet

E CLAY ST

E CENTER ST

E WASHINGTON ST

S 
EI

G
H

TH
 S

TOAKWOOD ST

N
 N

IN
T

H
 S

T

C
IR

C
L

E
 D

R

S S
EVENTH

 S
T

FOREST ST

B-2(CD)

B-2

B-1

B-2

B-2
R-12

R-12

R-12

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
Parcel ID 168648

ZONING MAP

R-20 | Residential

R-15 | Residential

R-12 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-12 | Residential

R-10 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-10 | Residential

R-8 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-8 | Residential

R-6 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-6 | Residential

MHP

O&I (CD) | Office & Institutional Conditional

O&I | Office & Institutional

LM (CD) | Light Manufacturing Conditional

LM | Light Manufacturing

HM (CD) | Heavy Manufacturing Conditional

HM | Heavy Manufacturing

B-3 | Neighborhood Business

B-2 & HM | Gen. Business & Heavy Manufacturing

B-2 (CD) | General Business Conditional

B-2 | General Business

B-1 (CD) | Central Business Conditional

B-1 | Central Business

City of Mebane Zoning

City Limits

ETJ

Alamance Parcels

Subject Property

HM

LM

R-12



S 
SE

VE
NT

H 
ST

E JACKSON ST

CI
RC

LE
 D

R

S 
EI

GH
TH

 S
T

E OAKWOOD ST

N
 S

EV
EN

TH
 S

T

CIR
CLE D

R

E FOREST ST

E CLAY ST

E WASHINGTON ST

E CENTER STG-1
Downtown
Mixed-Use

Secondary

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

1 inch = 175 feet

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
Parcel ID 168648Future Growth Area Map

Subject Property



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

November 14, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

The Planning Board meeting was held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building located at 106 E. 
Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302 and livestreamed via YouTube. However, due to technical 
challenges the audio was not recorded on the video. 
 
 

Planning Board Members Present:  Members Absent:  
Edward Tulauskas, Chair  Keith Hoover 
Judy Taylor, Vice Chair Gale Pettiford 
Jason VanBuren  
Susan Semonite  
William Chapman  
Kurt Pearson  

City Staff Present:   
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 
Audrey Vogel, City Planner 
Kirk Montgomery, IT Director 

 
1. Call to Order 

At 6:30 p.m. Chairman Tulauskas called the meeting to order. 
 
2. Approval of October 10, Meeting Minutes 

Jason VanBuren made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. William Chapman seconded the 
motion which passed unanimously. 

 
3. City Council Actions Update 

Ashley Ownbey, Development Director, provided an update on the City Council’s recent action at 
the November City Council meeting. 
 

4. Request to rezone the +/- 0.74-acre parcel located at v (GPIN 9825231392) from HM (Heavy 
Manufacturing) to O&I (Office and Institutional) by TRG Capital, LLC. 
 
TRG Capital, LLC is requesting to rezone the +/- 32,234.4 sf property addressed 304 E Washington St 
(Alamance County GPIN 9825231392), from HM, Heavy Manufacturing to O&I, Office and 
Institutional. The property is developed with one structure currently being used as an office 
building. The existing “General Office” use is not permitted in the HM zoning district and is 
considered nonconforming. Rezoning the property will bring the current use into conformity and 
enable the applicant to expand the use. The property meets the minimum lot area and lot width and 
can accommodate the minimum setbacks required for the O&I Zoning District. 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

November 14, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area 
and consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval. Audrey Vogel provided an 
overview and PowerPoint presentation of the general rezoning request.  

Shawn Sidener of EarthCentric Engineering, Inc. attended the meeting on behalf of the applicant and 
was available to answer any questions about the request.  
 
Tom Boney of the Alamance News asked about the “big picture” of the rezoning request noting that 
the applicant has two other rezoning requests on the agenda.  
 
Audrey Vogel responded that more information about the other two rezoning requests would be 
presented during the meeting and added that the existing zoning in the area is challenging because 
it does not align well with the underlying property lines and creates non-conforming lots or lots that 
are difficult to use.   
 
Kurt Pearson made a motion to approve the request as follows: 

Motion to approve the O&I zoning as presented; and  
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 

• Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a small 
business use in the Downtown District (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth 
Management Goal 1.1 (p. 17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses. 

 
Susan Semonite seconded the motion which passed unanimously. Mr. Tulauskas confirmed that the 
request would be scheduled for a public hearing before the Mebane City Council on December 5th. 
 

5. Request to rezone a +/- 15,681 s.f. unaddressed parcel with frontage on Oakwood Street (GPIN 
982523121) from HM (Heavy Manufacturing) and R-12 (Residential) to R-12 (Residential) by TRG 
Capital, LLC.  
 
Audrey Vogel informed the Board there are two R-12 rezoning requests from TRG Capital (agenda 
items 5 and 6). These requests are for two very similar, adjacent properties and for the sake of time 
and clarity Audrey would present these requests concurrently, but they would each require their 
own motion. See below item 6 for discussion and action on this item. 

 
6. Request to rezone a +/- 12,632 s.f. unaddressed parcel with frontage on Oakwood Street (GPIN 

9825232048) from HM (Heavy Manufacturing) and R-12 (Residential) to R-12 (Residential) by TRG 
Capital, LLC 

 
TRG Capital, LLC is requesting to rezone the +/- 12,632 s.f. unaddressed property with frontage on 
Oakwood Street (Alamance County GPIN 9825232048), from HM and R-12 to R-12, and to rezone 
the adjacent +/- 15,681 property (Alamance County GPIN 982523121) from HM and R-12 to R-12.  
 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

November 14, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Both properties are currently vacant and located within the Mebane City Limits. The purpose of the 
R-12 zoning requests is to eliminate the HM split zoning on each property. Both lots meet the 
minimum lot area and lot width and can accommodate the minimum setbacks required for the R-12 
zoning district. Sewer is available in the area. Water will require an extension or easements to serve 
each property. The applicant will be required to make any improvements at their own expense. 
 
The Planning staff has reviewed the requests for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area 
and consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval for both rezonings. Audrey 
Vogel provided an overview and PowerPoint presentation of the general rezoning request.  

Shawn Sidener of EarthCentric Engineering, Inc. attended the meeting on behalf of the applicant and 
was available to answer any questions about the request.  
 
Kurt Pearson asked if the applicant had a plan of action for getting water to the properties. Mr. 
Sidener said that it has not been decided, but the applicant will explore potential options of an 
extension along Oakwood St or an easement through 304 E Washington St (the previous rezoning 
request). 
 
Tom Boney of the Alamance News revisited his question about the “big picture” of the applicant’s 
three rezoning requests on the agenda. Shawn Sidener answered that the overall goal is to clean up 
the zoning. The applicant has immediate plans to upgrade his office building at 304 E Washington St 
and plans in the future to build homes on the Oakwood lots.  
 
Judy Taylor made a motion to approve the R-12 request for the Oakwood St Parcel ID 168644 as 
follows: 

Motion to approve the R-12 zoning as presented; and  
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request:  

• Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a residential 
use in the Downtown Districts (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth 
Management Goal 1.1 (p. 17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses 

 
Kurt Pearson seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Judy Taylor made a motion to approve the R-12 request for the Oakwood St Parcel ID 168648 as 
follows: 

Motion to approve the R-12 zoning as presented; and  
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request:  

• Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a residential 
use in the Downtown Districts (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth 
Management Goal 1.1 (p. 17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

November 14, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

 
Kurt Pearson seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Chairman Tulauskas confirmed the 
requests would be scheduled for public hearings before the Mebane City Council on December 5th. 
 

7. Request to rezone two parcels, GPIN 9804720640 and portion of GPIN 9804810638, totaling +/- 
77.689 acres located at 1447 Trollingwood Hawfields Rd from LM (Light Manufacturing) and B-2 
(General Business) to LM CD (Light Manufacturing Conditional District) to allow light-industrial 
development including three warehouse buildings by CHI Acquisitions, L.P 
 
CHI/Acquisitions, L.P. is requesting approval to conditionally rezone two properties totaling +/- 
77.69 acres located at 1447 Trollingwood Hawfields Road (GPIN 9804720640 and portion of GPIN 
9804810638) from B-2 and LM to LM (CD) to allow for a light industrial development including three 
warehouse buildings. The property is located in Alamance County in the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction 
(ETJ). A request for annexation has been submitted to the City and the public hearing is scheduled 
for the December City Council meeting. CHI/Acquisitions, L.P. has the property under contract to 
purchase, contingent upon approval of the conditional rezoning. 
 
The site-specific plan, proposed onsite amenities, TIA roadway improvements, and staff report are 
included in the meeting agenda packet available here. 
 
Ashley Ownbey provided an overview and PowerPoint presentation of the request. 
 
The following individuals attended the meeting to represent the zoning request: 

Nick Thornton – Crow Holdings, applicant 
Nathan Rhomberg– VHB, traffic consultant 
George Retschle– Ballentine Associates, civil engineer 

 
Nick Thornton gave a detailed PowerPoint presentation, including information about Crow Holdings, 
the subject property, site plan, and building architecture.  
 
Chairman Tulauskas asked how site lighting would impact surrounding properties. Mr. Thornton 
responded that the site will have light poles designed to guide light downward and that the layout of 
the site and buffers will cluster most of the lighting internally.  
 
Kurt Pearson asked the applicant to elaborate on the expected building use/tenants, types of jobs to 
expect and why Mebane is seeing so much of this type of development. Mr. Thornton responded 
that the type of tenants would likely be in the light manufacturing category as opposed to 
warehouse distribution. He explained that some of the smaller-scale operations like to have 
showrooms for customers on site. Regarding jobs, Mr. Thornton estimated a range of light assembly 
type positions in addition to smaller amount of front office and managerial work. Mr. Thornton 
explained that Mebane is targeted for this type of development due to the business-friendly 
environment, geographic location between two metropolitan areas, education base, strong labor 
force, and proximity to I-40/85.  
 

https://cityofmebanenc.gov/meetings/planning-board-meeting-november-14-2022/


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

November 14, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Kurt Pearson explained that this information about economic growth is important because Mebane 
community members often only see the truck traffic on the road. Nick Thornton added that the 
proposed project would be a revenue positive development in that Crow Holdings and future 
tenants would pay taxes.  
 
Judy Taylor asked if both driveways accessing Trollingwood-Hawfields Road shown on the site plan 
would be used for truck access. Mr. Thornton answered that the northern entrance would be 
intended for cars only and showed on the site plan how trucks would enter and exit the site.  
 
Judy Taylor asked for more information about the stream on the property. Mr. Thornton highlighted 
the areas on the site that included the stream and stream buffer. He explained that the streams 
would not be disturbed and doing so would require additional, lengthy permitting through the Army 
Corps of Engineers. 
 
Martin Shoffner, 1468 Trollingwood Hawfields Rd, commented that he owned a residential rental 
property across the street from the site and had concerns about the impact of the proposed 
development on the residential properties across the street. He specifically named truck traffic, 
especially noise at nighttime and “Jake Braking,” as a concern.  Additionally, Mr. Shoffner asked how 
the development would relate to the Lowes Blvd Corridor extension in the future and asked about 
the extension of utilities to serve the site.  
 
George Retschle (Ballentine Associates, civil engineer for applicant) responded to Mr. Shoffner’s 
question about utility service for the site and referenced the site plan to show how the project 
would connect to City utilities.  
 
Ashley Ownbey responded that the extension of Lowes Boulevard would be constructed as the area 
is developed and the extension project has not been submitted to the NCDOT for consideration 
through the State’s prioritization program.  
 
Tom Boney asked about the proposed fire station dedication shown on the site plan. Nick Thornton 
answered that in collaboration with the City on the site planning process, it was determined that a 
fire station would be suitable in the area.  
 
Tom Boney asked if the NCDOT approved the two driveways on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road as 
shown on the Plans. 
 
Nathan Rhomberg (VHB, traffic consultant for applicant) answered that the NDOT has reviewed the 
plans and driveways as part of the TRC approval process. Mr. Rhomberg elaborated on the Traffic 
Impact Analysis which indicated that a traffic signal is not warranted on Trollingwood-Hawfields 
Road. 
 
Judy Taylor expressed concern about truck traffic resulting from the project on Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road, noting that trucks entering and exiting the site would increase congestion issues 
and could be potentially hazardous due to their size. She added that the North Carolina Commerce 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

November 14, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

Park is primarily accessed and contained on Senator Ralph Scott Pkwy and found it odd to see 
driveways on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road. Susan Semonite echoed these concerns. 
 
Jason VanBuren asked if turn lanes would be provided and if the TIA considered UPS trucks.  

 
Nathan Rhomberg answered that the site plan does feature turn lanes at all three entrances. He 
explained that the TIA does incorporate UPS in addition to other nearby projects in the area. Mr. 
Rhomberg added that the planned NC 119 widening project will help alleviate traffic concerns in the 
future. He also explained that TIAs do not separate trucks out in trip generation, but the proposed 
land use typically has a lower trip generation and truck traffic is not typically concentrated at peak 
hours.  
 
Tom Boney asked if it would be possible to eliminate the driveways on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road 
all together and access the site exclusively from Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. Mr. Thornton 
answered that it would be possible, but not as feasible because it would require impacting the 
stream. 
 
Kurt Pearson made a motion to approve the request as follows: 

Motion to approve the LM(CD) zoning as presented.  
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 

• Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Industrial Growth Area, which “…supports 
industrial uses…” (Mebane CLP, p. 74);  

• Serves Growth Management Goal 1.7 through the support [of] industrial development 
at existing industrial parks near I-40/85 (pp.17, 59 & 82) 

 
Jason VanBuren seconded the motion, which passed by a 4-2 vote. Judy Taylor and Susan Semonite 
did not vote in favor of the request. Ms. Taylor cited her truck traffic concerns as her reasoning. Ms. 
Semonite echoed these concerns and added that it would be possible to eliminate the driveways on 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road by crossing the stream. 
 
 

8. New Business 
• Audrey Vogel shared that the application is open for the vacant Alamance ETJ seat on 

Planning Board.  
• Ashley Ownbey shared information about public engagement for the Recreation and Parks 

Comprehensive Master Plan and an updated Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation Plan. 
 

9. Adjournment 
Chairman Tulauskas adjourned the meeting at approximately 8:00 p.m. 


	Agenda- December 5, 2022 Regular Meeting
	Item 5a- Approval of Minutes- November 7, 2022 Regular Meeting with PowerPoints attached- DRAFT
	Item 5b- Summary Sheet- Annexation Petition- McKay Land NC, LLC
	Petition- Vol. Contiguous Annexation- McKay Land NC, LLC
	Certificate of Sufficiency- 2 McKay Land NC, LLC.- Vol. Contiguous Annex.
	Annex. Plat- McKay Land NC, LLC
	Resolution Setting a Date of Public Hearing- McKay Land NC, Inc

	Item 5c- Summary Sheet- Annexation Petition- G and L Construction and Larry and Susan Wood- Peartree Townhomes
	Petition for Annex.- G and L Construction and Larry and Susan Wood
	Certificate of Sufficiency- G and L Construction- Larry and Susan Wood- Vol. Contiguous Annex.
	Annex. Plat- G and L Construc. and Larry and Susan Wood- Peartree Townhomes
	Resolution Setting a Date of Public Hearing- G and L Construction- Larry and Susan Wood- Peartree Townhomes

	Item 5d- Summary Sheet - WRRF CPO No. 5
	Project Ordinance for WRRF  Expansion Project Amendment 5

	Item 5e- 2023 Regular Meetings and FY 2023-24 Budget Calendar DRAFT
	Item 6a- Summary Sheet- Ordinance to Extend Corp. Limits- Sarah Bradley (Crow Holdings)
	Ord. to Extend the Corporate Limits- Sarah Bradley (Crow Holdings)
	Annexation Plat- Sarah S. Bradley- Crow Holdings

	Item 6b- Summary Sheet - Conditional Rezoning - Crow Industrial
	Preliminary Presentation Slides
	Zoning Amendment Application
	Zoning Map
	Site Plan - Crow Industrial
	Planning Project Report - Crow Industrial
	Technical Memorandum for Crow Industrial at NCCP
	Crow Industrial at NCCP -City Engineer's letter of approval for preliminary water and sewer
	Crow Industrial TIA Review Comments - Ramey Kemp
	NCDOT Crow Alamance TIA Review FINAL UPDATED
	Subdivision Plat Memo

	Item 6c- Summary Sheet- General Rezoning - 304 E Washington
	Preliminary Presentation Slides
	Rezoning Application - PID 168645
	Zoning Map
	Growth Area Map

	Item 6d- Summary Sheet- Rezoning - 982523121
	Preliminary Presentation Slides
	Zoning Amendment App - 982523121
	Zoning Map - 982523121
	CLP Growth Area Map 982523121

	Item 6e- Summary Sheet- Rezoning - 9825232048
	Preliminary Presentation Slides
	Zoning Amendment Application - 9825232048
	Zoning Map - 9825232048
	CLP Growth Area Map - 9825232048

	PB Minutes- November 2022



